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May 13, 2005

Chief Executive Officer and Members
DeKalb County Board of Commissioners
DeKalb County, Georgia

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of DeKalb County, Georgia, (the County) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 is
submitted herewith. This report is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Act providing uniform standards for audits of municipalities and

counties within the State of Georgia, approved April 21, 1967 {(Ga. Laws 1967, p. 883) as amended by an Act approved March 28, 1968 (Ga. Laws 1968,
p. 464).

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the County. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for
the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the County has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from
loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the County’s financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County’s comprehensive framework
of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial statement is complete and reliable in all material
respects.

The County’s financial statements have been audited by KPMG, LLP licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the County for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, are free of material misstatement.
The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the County’s financial statements for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the County was part of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special
nceds of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
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presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special

emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the County’s
scparately issued Single Audit Report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.
The County’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

DeKalb County is an urban county providing a full range of services to 695,100 citizens. Included in these services are traditional county functions such
as road maintenance and court-related activities, as well as a number of municipal services such as police, fire, solid waste collection and disposal, and
water and sewer. There are nine incorporated municipalities within the County, including a portion of the City of Atlanta. Those municipalities
comprise approximately 13% of the total population of the County, and provide services to their citizens in varying degrees. Selected County
demographic information is provided in the statistical section of this report.

A 1981 Act of the General Assembly of Georgia provides for distinct executive and legislative branches of County government. The executive branch is
headed by the elective position of Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The legislative branch is made up of the Board of Commissioners, composed of seven
members, which elects from its membership a Presiding Officer and Deputy Presiding Officer. The CEO may preside at Board meetings and may vote in
the event of a tie vote, except the CEO doces not preside nor vote on zoning matters. The CEO has veto power, which may be overridden by a two-thirds
majority vote of the Board of Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners has the power and authority to fix and establish, by appropriate resolution
or ordinance (entered on its minutes), policics, rules and regulations governing all matters reserved to its jurisdiction. The CEO has exclusive power to
supervise, direct and control the administration of the County government.

The financial statements, schedules, and statistical tables included in this report pertain to all functions and funds directly under the control of the DeKalb
County CEO and Board of Commissioners. Also included are trust and agency funds administered and controlled by various elected or appointed
officials, which are not reported upon by any other entity. The Board of Health and the Public Library are included as component units of the County.
These component units are partially funded by the County, and derive significant funding from Federal and State grants and user fees. The Board of
Health provides a broad range of physical health services, and the Public Library provides a wide range of information services. Both units ended the
year in good financial positions.

Certain other entities are not included within the scope of this report. These exclusions consist of the DeKalb County Board of Education, the Fulton-
DeKalb Hospital Authority, the DeKalb Board of Family and Children Services, the DeKalb Community Service Board, the DeKalb Housing Authority
and the Development Authority of DeKalb County. These entities have not met the established criteria for inclusion in this report. However, any
amounts appropriated for disbursement to these entities as well as any amounts for which the County has contractual liability have been included in the
County's financial statements. The Fulton-DeKalb Hospital Authority is considered a joint venture between DeKalb County and Fulton County, Georgia,
and summary financial information is provided in the notes to the financial statements.

Annual budgets are adopted by the Board of Commissioners each year for the General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds. The level of control
(the level at which expenditures may not exceed appropriations) for each annual budget is the department level within each fund. Revenue and



appropriation adjustments may be made, when the Board of Commissioners approves property tax millage rates. Supplemental allocations can also be
made by the Board of Commissioners from the County's General Fund contingency account to fund unforeseen expenditures within the County's
Governmental Funds' departments. Individual departments are charged with operating within the scope of their allocated budget and intra-departmental
transfers must be submitted for approval by the Finance Department and/or the Chief Executive Officer.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

DeKalb County's overall financial position remains favorable. The County has enjoyed good economic health during the past few years. The County’s
annual unemployment rate of 5.2% for 2004 was below the national rate of 5.5%. In accordance with the Homestead Option Sales Tax, the County has
granted a homestead exemption on operating levies of 100% from 1999 through 2001, and the exemption was 86.8%, 60.58% and 59.07% in 2002, 2003
and 2004, respectively. As a result of this exemption and other favorable conditions, the number of homestead properties in the County has increased
from 125,000 in 1999 to 146,531 in 2004, New construction increased in 2004 by $187,347,274, with over $1,754,000,000 in construction value on
building permits issued. Revenue from business related fees and taxes (hotel/motel, alcoholic beverage, business licenses and building permits)
increased over $1,976,000 during 2004 compared to 2003. At the end of 2004, the County’s sales tax receipts increased by 4.1%.

DeKalb County is a mature County, which is mostly developed in many areas. The Atlanta metropolitan area, of which DeKalb is a part, serves as a
center for banking, communications, transportation, accounting, insurance, and other services.

The 2004 budget continued the trend begun in 1991 to minimize the property tax burden on the citizens of the County. For 2004, there was an increase
in the tax-supported budgets of 2.4%. The Fund Balance at ycar-end was $21.4 million in the General Fund.

On March 20, 2001, the voters in the unincorporated areas approved a referendum to issue $125,000,000 in Special Recreation Tax District General
Obligation Bonds. These bonds were issued on October 11, 2001, and the proceeds are being used to acquire open space and park land (70%) and to
improve and construct park and recreation facilities (30%).

In past years DeKalb relied heavily on the property tax as a primary revenue source as it did not have a local option sales tax. On March 18, 1997, the
voters of the County approved a permanent one-percent Homestead Option Sales Tax, to be effective July 1, 1997. In 2004, 83% of this sales tax was
used to reduce property taxes (in the form of an increased homestead exemption) collected for County operations (including General Government, Fire
Protection, Hospital Services and Special District Services) from homestead properties. Local Sales Tax Revenues from July 1, 1997 through December
31, 1998 are being used for major capital projects throughout the County. $13.7 million was dedicated to capital outlay (infrastructure) projects from

HOST funds in 2004.

Cash management policies and practices.

The County maintains a pooled cash and investments account for most County funds. The County seeks to obtain market rates of return on its
investments, consistent with constraints imposed by its safety objectives, cash flow considerations, and Georgia state laws, Safety of principal is the

foremost objective. Competitive bids are required on all County investments. Tax anticipation notes were not issued in 2004,

Risk Management and Employee Services
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DeKalb County has a Risk Management and Employee Services Division within its Finance Department. The focus of this office is to minimize loss to
the County through data analysis and loss prevention programs, and to administer the County's surety, liability, and employee group insurance programs
including workers’ compensation. Although the number of workers’ compensation claims increased from 1,013 in 2003 to 1,110 in 2004, the lost work
days per 1,000 employees remains below national levels.

Pension and other post employment benefits.

The County sponsors a single-employer defined benefit pension plan for all County employees. Each year, an independent actuary engaged by the
pension plan calculates the amount of the annual contribution that the County must make to the pension plan to ensure that the plan will be able to fully
meet its obligations to retired employees on a timely basis. As of April 1, 2004, the date of the last actuarial report, the County’s pension plan had funded
109.57% of the actuarial accrued liability of the plan.

The County currently offers to provide post employment health benefits for all retirees. These benefits are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. As of
December 31, 2004, GAAP does not require governments to report a liability in the financial statements in connection with an employer’s obligation to
provide these benefits.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to DeKalb County for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. This was the 26th
consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. [n order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet
the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments

The preparation of this report has been accomplished through the efficient and dedicated efforts of the entire staff of the Finance Department, particularly
the Accounting Services Division, and through the cooperation of the various elected officials. The County has upgraded their Financial Management
Information System to the state of the art technology, integrated with numérous other systems. This was performed by L’le dedication of a significant
number of staff. I wish to express my sincere appreciation to everyone who co?tributed to the imple 7ﬂati0n, as well as the preparation of this report.
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KPMG LLP
Suite 2000
303 Peachiree Straet, NE

Atlanta, GA 30308
Independent Auditors® Report

Chief Exccutive Officer and Honorable Members
of the Board of Commissioners
DeKalb County, Georgia:

We have audited the accompanying financial statcments of the governmental activitics, the business-type aclivities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, cach major fund, and the
aggrepate remaining fund information of DeKalb County, Georgia (the County) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibibity of the management of the County. Our respoensibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the DeKalb County Board of Health, which represent 82% and 69%, respectively, of the assels and revenue of the aggregate discretely
presented component units, Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thercon has been furnished to us, snd our opinion, insofar as il relates to the amounts included for
the DeKalb County Board of Health, is bascd on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to (inancial audits contained in Govermment Awditing
Standards, issucd by the Compiroller General of the United States, Thosce standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rcasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statemenis
are free ol material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of interal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances, bul not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the efTectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we cxpress no such opinion. An audit includcs cxamining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We belicve that our audit and the report of other auditors pravide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial staterments referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
povernmental activitics, the business-type activitics, the aggrepate discretely presented component units, cach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of DeKalb County, Georgin,
as of December 31, 2004, and the respective changes in financial position and cash NMows, where applicable, thereofl and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, Special Tax
District - Designated Services Fund and the Special Tax District ~ Unincorporated Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standares, we have also issucd our report dated May 13, 2005 on our consideration of the County's inlemal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with ccntain provisions of [aws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not 1o provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standurds and should be considered in asscssing the results of our audil.

The management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of funding progress, and the schedule of employer contributions on pages F2 through F11 and page F43, respectively, arc not a required part
ol the basic financial statements bul is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ol America, We have applicd certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquirics of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on il.

Qur audit was conducted [or the purposc of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the County's basic linancial statements. The combining nonmajor fund flinancial
stalements, and introductlory and statistical sections listed in the table of contents, are prescated for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining nonmajor fund financial statements have been subjected 1o the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statemenis and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation 1a the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The intreductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applicd in the audil of the basic

financial statcments and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them,

May 13, 2005

KPMG LLP, aU S limuted kabiity pattnership, = the LIS
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of DeKalb County {County), we offer readers of the County’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the County for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $1,656,762,000 (net assets). Of this amount, $138,406,000 (unrestricted
net assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The County’s total net assets increased by $64,391,000 during 2004. $45,578,000 of the increase was due to business-type activities with the governmental
funds experiencing an increase of $18,813,000.

As of the close of the fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $206,694,000 a decrease of 521,592,000 in
comparison with the previous year.

At the close of the fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $19,793,000, or 8.9% of total general fund expenditures.

The County’s total debt increased by $25,550,000 (3.2%) during the current fiscal year. At the end of 2004, the County entered into a lease agreement
with the DeKalb Public Safety and Judicial Facilities Authority to acquire, construct and equip several projects totaling $50,000,000. This was offset by
bond retirement.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements
comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets.
Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net
assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all ora significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government, public safety, civil and criminal court system, planning,
public works, community development, parks and recreation, health and welfare, and other miscellaneous activities. The business-type activities of the
County include water and sewerage, sanitation, DeKalb-Peachtree Airport, and the stormwater utility, which began significant operations in 2004.



The government-wide financial statements include not only the County itself (known as the primary government), but also a legally separate Board of
Health and the Public Library Board for which the County is financially accountable. Financial information for these component units is reported
separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages F12-F13 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fiind is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds
of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful
in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information
presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the govermment-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains forty individual govemmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the special tax district designated services fund
and the special tax district unincorporated fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other thirty-seven funds are combined into a single
aggregated presentation.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages Fi14-F20 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewerage system fund,
sanitation fund, DeKalb Peachtree Airport fund, and stormwater utility fund. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the County’s various functions. The County uses internal service funds to account for its vehicle maintenance fund, vehicle
replacement fund, and risk management fund. Because the risk management fund predominantly benefits governmental activities rather than business-type
functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Because the vehicle maintenance fund and
vehicle replacement fund predominantly benefit business-type functions rather than governmental, they have been included within business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial

statements provide separate information for the water and scwerage system fund and the sanitation fund. The DeKalb Peachtree Airport fund and
stormwater utility fund are combined into a single aggregated presentation. Conversely, all three internal service funds are combined into a single
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aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages F21-F23 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected
in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages F24-F25 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages F28-F48 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the County, assets exceeded
liabilities by $1,656,762,000 at the close of the fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the County’s net assets (85 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, equipment,
etc.), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.



DcKalb County’s Net Assets
December 31, 2004 and 2003
{In thousands of dollars)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Current and other assels $289,508 $289,395 $267.741 $302,300 $557,249 $591,695
Capital assets 940,339 851,063 1,145,791 1,069,265 2,086,130 1,920,328
Total assets $1,229,847 1,140,458 1,413,532 1,371,565 2,643,379 2,512,023
Long-term liabilities 355,413 335,186 512,032 532,893 867,445 868,079
Other liabilities . 75,867 25,518 43,305 26,055 119,172 51,573
Total liabilities 431,280 360,704 555,337 558,948 986,617 919,652
Net assels:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 723,385 670,833 695,273 661,681 1,418,658 1,352,514
Restricted 41,118 57,533 58,580 49,015 99,698 106,548
Unrestricted 34,064 51,388 104,342 81,921 138,406 133,309
Total net assels $798,567 $779,754 $858,195 $812,617 $1,656,762 $1,592,371

An additional portion of the County’s net assets (6 percent) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The
remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($138,406,000) may be used to meet the governments’ ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole,
as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

The government’s net assets increased by $64,391,000 during the current fiscal year. Business-type activities increased by $45,578,000 while
governmental activities had an increase of $18,813,000.

The most significant changes between 2003 and 2004 in both governmental activities and business-type activities relate to additions to capital assets and

an increase in debt predominately related to those capital assets. See more explanation of the capital asset and long-term debt activity in later sections of
this analysis.
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DeKalb County’s Changes in Net Assets

For the Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
(In thousands of dollars)

Governmental Activities _Business-type Aclivities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $94 421 $90,929 $193,626 $175,670 $288,047 $266,599
Operating grants and contributions 17,901 24,165 - - 17,901 24,165
Capital grants and contributions 28,250 30,969 17,875 7,602 46,125 38,571
General revenues:
Property taxes 209,783 219,265 - - 209,783 219,265
Sales taxes 85,365 81,684 - - 85,365 81,684
Other taxes 77,728 66,502 - - 77,728 66,502
Grants not restricted to specific programs 21,439 17,307 - - 21,439 17,307
Other 21,139 6,332 2,286 3,079 23,425 9,411
Total revenues 556,026 537,153 213,787 186,351 769,813 723,504
Expenses:
General government 66,013 67,434 - - 66,013 67,434
Public safety 166,585 148,775 - - 166,585 . 148,775
Civil and criminal court system 123,479 110,237 - - 123,479 110,237
Planning 1,686 1,599 - - 1,686 1,599
Public works 63,510 50,950 - - 63,510 50,950
Community development 13,323 9,444 - - 13,323 9,444
Parks and recreation 23,306 18,003 - - 23,306 18,003
Library 11,699 11,286 - - 11,699 11,286
Health and welfare 35,118 34,539 - - 35,118 34,539
Miscellaneous 16,984 12,181 - - 16,984 12,181
Interest on long-term debt 16,205 19,796 - - 16,205 19,796
Water . - 53,187 48,421 53,187 48,421
Sewer - 62,437 56,843 62,437 56,843
Stormwater Utility - 5,038 597 5,038 597
Sanitation - 44,037 43,896 44,037 43,896
Airport - - 2,815 2,657 2,815 2,657
Total expenses 537,908 484,244 167,514 152,414 705,422 636,658
Increase in net assets before transfers 18,118 52,909 46,273 33,937 64,391 86,846
Transfers 895 _ (610) (695) 610 - -
Increase in net assets 18,813 52,299 45,578 34,547 64,33 86,846
Net assets-beginning 779,754 727,455 812,617 778,070 1,592,371 1,505,525
Net assets-ending $798,567 $779.754 $858,195 $812,617 $1,656,762 $1,592,371




Analysis of governmental activities.

Net assets of the governmental activities of the County increased by $18,813,000 in 2004. Property taxes accounted for 38% of the governmental activities
revenues, sales taxes accounted for 15%, and charges for services accounted for an additional 17%. Public safety expenses accounted for 31% of governmental
activities expenses and were used for police, fire, and rescue services. The civil and criminal court system accounted for an additional 23% of the total
expenses for governmental activities. General government expenscs, which represented 12% of the total expenses for governmental activities, included the
general administration of the County such as management of finances, information systems, human resources, and facilities management, as well as the
executive and legislative functions of County government. Public works, which includes the management of roads, drainage, and transportation networks of
the County, accounted for 12% of the total expenses of the governmental activities.

Charges for services increased in the areas of emergency management services and court fees. Property taxes declined primarily relating to reductions in the
personal property digest. The personal property digest was affected by the slowing economic conditions and changes in exemption levels by State law.

Analysis of business-type activities.

Charges for services accounted for 91% of business-type activities revenues. Water expenses accounted for 32% of business-type activities expenses, sewer
expenses accounted for 37%, sanitation services accounted for 26%, the Peachtree-DeKalb Airport accounted for 2% of expenses, and the Stormwater Utility
program incurred expenses in 2004 for 3%.

Residential sanitation fees were increased effective July 1, 2002 from $186 per annum to $223 per annum. This fee remains one of the lowest fees in the
metropolitan area. Furthermore, the billing of this fee has been transferred to the tax bill to improve the collection rate. In 2004, Sanitation expenses increased
due to capital costs associated with the operation of the landfill and expansion of the new roll-off service.

Water & sewer metered rates were increased by 22 percent effective January 2005, but remain the lowest fees in the metropolitan area. Rates were last
increased in 2002, and this recent increase supports a significant capital improvements program for the Water & Sewer Department. Operating expenses
increased due to personnel expenses and cost of contracted services for expanded compliance inspections and rehabilitation of sewers.

Analysis of the County’s Funds.

Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the focus of the County’s governmental fund statements is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of resources
available to spend. In its general and special revenue funds, the County reported combined ending fund balances of $47,640,000, an increase of $666,000 over
the prior year. Of this total fund balance for general and special revenue funds, $44,910,000 is unreserved. Additionally, the governmental funds include the

debt service and capital project funds with a total fund balance of $159,054,000 which will be spent on outstanding debt and capital projects of the County.

At the end of the year, fund balance in the General Fund was $21,401,000, representing a slight decrease of $1,112,000 from the fund balance in the prior year.
The decrease resulted from lower than anticipated revenues from personal property taxes.

The fund balance of the Special Tax District - Designated Services Fund at year-end was $8,353,000 which represented an increase of $3,204,000 from the
prior year.
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The Special Tax District — Unincorporated Fund had a decrease in fund balance of $47,000 from the prior year to end the year with a fund balance of
$1,043,000.

Proprietary Funds

The County’s proprietary funds report the activities of the water and sewer, sanitation, airport and stormwater utility services within the County and report the
same level of activity, with an overall increase in net assets of $49,549,000, as the business-type activities described earlier only in greater detail. The increase
in net assets was predominately in the Water and Sewerage System which increased its net assets by $21,843,000. The increase resulted from revenues which
exceeded expenses of approximately $15 million, which was consistent with the prior year, and infrastructure contributions from developers of $6.3 million.
The Sanitation Fund’s net assets increased by $15,819,000 as revenues exceeded expenditures for the year. Overall activity in the fund increased within the
fund from the prior year, with revenue, primarily user charges increasing 11.2% and expenses, primarily operating charges, decreasing 7.4%. The new
Stormwater Utility Fund was a major contributor to the change in net assets ($11,887,000) of the other enterprise funds, as this was the first full year of
operations.

Each of the funds has charges for its services as the major source of revenue within the fund with the expenses being predominately for salaries, employee
benefits, and operating services and charges. Additionally, the Water and Sewerage System has significant expenses for interest on its long-term bonds and for
depreciation of the capital assets of the system.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Sales tax receipts increased 4.1%. Property taxes decreased in the General Fund in 2004 as a result of a reduction in the personal property digest value.
Investment income increased as interest rates steadily increased throughout the year. There were no significant changes between the original and final
amended budgets. Actual results differed from the amended budget due to the following reasons. Expenses exceeded the budgeted amounts for only one
department: Juvenile Court relating to attorney fees.

Capital Assets

The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of year-end, amounts to $2,086,130,000 (net of accumulated
depreciation). The investment in capital assets includes land, land improvements, buildings, plants, infrastructure, vehicles and portable equipment, other
equipment, leaseholds, and construction in progress. Among the significant activity in 2004 was the County’s acquisition of more than 253 acres of
greenspace in 2004 and the acquisition of new police and fire & rescue headquarters.

The water & sewer system is nearing completion of the water treatment plant valued at $155 million. Improvements to the landfill have also been
undertaken. Readers should refer to note 7 of the financial statements for more information on capital asset activity.



Capital asset balances at year-end are as follows:

Capital Assets
December 31, 2004 and 2003
{In thousands of dollars, net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Land $201,516 $177,753 $41,669 $40,620 $243,185 $218,373
Land improvements 15,443 16,026 42,572 44 296 58,015 60,322
Buildings 233,701 185,342 5,323 5,660 239,024 191,002
Plants - - 101,310 104,459 101,310 104,459
Infrastructure 404,542 384,578 431,093 421,941 835,635 806,519
Vehicles and portable
equipment - - 37,668 50,509 37,668 50,509
Other equipment 19,574 21,887 41,841 41,103 61,415 62,990
Leaseholds - - 148,843 152,320 148,843 162,320
Construction in progress 65,563 65,477 295,472 208,357 361,035 273,834

Total $940,339 $851,063 $1,145,7H $1,069,265 $2,086,130 $1,920,328

Debt Administration

DeKalb County's financial condition is demonstrated by the ratings of its bonds as of year-end:

Moody's Investors Standard
Service and Poors
General Obligation Aaa AA+
Refunded General Obligation Aaa AAA
Water and Sewerage System Revenue Aa2 AA
Refunded Water and Sewerage Revenue Aaa AAA
Certificates of Participation Aal AA
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Qutstanding Debt at Year End
(In thousands of dollars)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 _____ 2003 2004 2003
General abligation bonds $234,500 $250,345 - - $234,500 $250,345
Certificates of participation 24,525 25,000 - - 24,5625 25,000
Revenue bonds 64,420 15,000 $497,815 $505,365 562,235 520,365
Total $323,445 $290,345 $497,815 $505,365 $821,260 $795,710

In 2001, the County’s General Obligation debt was upgraded by Moody’s to Aaa, and has maintained that rating since. Except for bonds, which are
supported by bond insurance or other forms of credit enhancement, DeKalb County's ratings for 2004 are equal to or higher than those of all but three local
governments in the State,

On a budget basis, $18,213,000 of general obligation bonds were retired during the year. The County's gross principal amount, less debt retirement funds
available on general obligation debt at year-end was $221,318,000. The constitutional debt limit for general obligation bonds is 10% of the assessed value
of taxable property within the County. Based on current gross assessed property values of $22,330,000,000 the County's net outstanding debt of
$221,318,000 represented only 0.99 % of gross assessed property values.

In terms of bonded debt per capita, the net direct general obligation debt outstanding at year-end represented $318.44 per capita compared to $346.64 in
the previous year. Total direct and overlapping debt applicable to the County at year-end was $304,682,000 or $438.33 per capita. This compares to last
year's amount of $464.17. Details of direct and overlapping debt and legal debt margin are contained in the Statistical Section of this report.

Readers should refer to note 8 of the financial statements for more information on long-term debt activity. The DeKalb Public Safety & Judicial Facilities
Authority issued $50 million in revenue bonds, on behalf of the County, to acquire, construct and equip new police and fire & rescue headquarters, as well
as a public safety vehicle maintenance facility, police and fire stations and to complete the courthouse renovation. The County will make lease payments to
the DeKalb Public Safety & Judicial Facilities Authority.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

In accordance with the Homestead Option Sales Tax legislation, the County may allocate up to 20 percent of the previous year’s receipts to capital outlay
projects. The 2004 Budget adopted by the County provided for the use of 16.8 percent, or $13.745 million for capital outlay projects. As a result the
Homestead Exemption decreased to 59.07 percent from 60.58 percent in 2003, as a result of growth in the number and value of homesteads.

The County governing body adopted a Stormwater Utility Program and fee in December 2002. This program has begun to address the County’s needs in the
area of stormwater collection and treatment. The fee will was first collected on the 2004 tax bill,

As a resuit of the Homestead Exemption of 100 percent in 1999 through 2001, and 86.8, 60.58 and 59.07 percent exemption in 2002, 2003 and 2004,
respectively, and as a result of historically low home mortgage interest rates, the number of homestead properties in the County has increased from 125,000 in



1999 to 146,531 in 2004, or an increase of 17.2 percent. Population has increased from 610,000 in 1999 to 695,100 in 2004. This increase has impacted the
need for services, especially, in the areas of public safety and the business-type activities (sanitation and water & sewer).

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Office of the Finance

Director, 1300 Commerce Drive, Decatur, GA 30030, 404-371-2741.
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivatents
Invastments

Accounts receivable {net)
Taxes receivable {net)

Due from other governments
Due from others

Inventories and prepaid items
Deferred bond issuance cosls
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalenis
Capital assels not being depreciated
Capital assels net of accumulated depreciation

Total assels

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Claims and judgments payable
Accrued interest payable
Other accrued liabilities
Advanced payments and deposils
Due to other govemments
Due to others
Deferred revenues
Liabitities payable from restricted assels:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest on revenue bonds
Due to others
Noncurrent iiabililies:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabitities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assels, net of relaled debt
Restricted for debt service
Restricled for granis
Restricted for capital projecls
Unrestricted
Total net assets

The noles Lo the financial statements are an integral part of this stalement.

DeKalb County, Georgia

Statemenl of Net Assets

December 31, 2004
{in thousands of dollars)

Primary Government

$

5

Govemmental
Aclivities
224 457

5,562
48,790
6,858
1,616
578
1,647

267,079
673,260
1,229,847

24,270

3,524
10,137
2,533
726
767
4,720

29,190
355,413
431,280

723,385
9,662
372
31,084
34,064
798,567

Business-type

Activilies Total
H] 113,218 5 337.675
34,566 40,128
- 48,790
1,31 8,189
- 1,616
3.933 4,111
10,123 11,770
104,970 104,970
337,141 604,220
808,650 1,481,910
1,413,532 2,643,379
9,210 33,480
- 3,524
2,265 12,402
199 2,732
2,189 2,915
- 767
- 4,720
4,196 4,196
6,199 6,199
10,305 10,305
8,742 37,932
512,032 867,445
555,137 986,617
695,273 1,418,658
7,747 17,409
- 372
50,833 81,917
104,342 138,406
5 858,195 s 1,656,762

Component

Unils

2,830
673
1,738

2,145

68

343

1,861
9,658

34
1,445
2,937
1.827

343

4,551
6,721
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Statement of Aclivilies
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

Program Revenues Nel (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Nel Assels

The notes to the financial statemenls are an integral part of this statement.

Operaling Capital Primary Govemmenl
Charges for Granis and Granis and Governmental Business-lype Component
Funclions / Programs Expenses Services Contributions Conlributions Aclivilies Activities Total Unils
Primary govemment:
Govemmenial aclivities:
General govemment s 66,013 $ 20,061 $ 1,262 5 2,864 $  (41,826) $ S $  {41,826) .
Public salely 166,585 20,859 1,985 143 {143,598) - {143,598) -
Civil and criminal court sysiem 123,479 37,319 699 - (85,461) - {85,461) -
Planning 1,686 207 - - (1.479) - (1,479) -
Pubtic works 63,510 12,681 - 24,438 (26,391) - {26,391) -
Communily development 13,323 - 11,578 - {1,745) - {1,745) -
Parks and recrealion 23,306 3,233 207 BOS {19,061) - {19,061) -
Library 11,699 - - - {11,6929) - {11,699) -
Heath and welfare 35.118 61 2,151 - {32,906) - {32,906) -
Bond issuance expense 237 - - - (237) - {237)
Miscellaneous 16,747 - 19 - (16,728) - {16,728) -
Interest on long-term debt 16,205 - - - (16,205) - {16,205) -
Tolal govemmental aclivities 537,508 94 421 17,804 28,250 (397,336) - {397,336) -
Businass-type activilies:
Water 53,187 53,061 - 7,951 - 7,825 7,825 -
Sewer 62,437 62,269 - 9,334 - 9,186 9,186 -
Sanitation 44,037 58,405 - - - 14,368 14,368 -
DeKalt Peachiree Airport 2,815 3,178 - 590 - 953 953 -
Stormwater Utility 5,038 16,693 - - - 11,655 11,655
Total business-type aclivilies 167.514 193,626 - 17.875 - 43,987 43,987 -
Total primary government 705,422 288,047 17,901 46,125 {397,336} 43,987 {353,349) -
Comgonent unils:
Board of health 29,006 6,059 16,401 - - - - (6,546)
Public litrary board 13,257 665 48 - - - - (12,544}
Tolal component unils $ 42,263 $ 5,724 $ 16,449 $ - - - - {19,090}
General revenues:
Sales tax 835,365 - 85,365 -
Properly lax 209,783 - 209,783 -
Molor vehicle 1ax 22,540 - 22,540 -
Hotel / motel 1ax 5,830 - 5,830 -
Alcoholic beverage lax 4,230 - 4,230 -
Insurance premium lax 26,321 - 26,321 -
Business license lax 18,807 - 18,807 -
Payments from primary govemment - - - 16,470
Unrestricted invesiment eamings 2,326 2,286 4,612 1
Granis not restricted lo specific purpose 21,439 - 21,439 1,114
Miscellaneous 18,813 - 18,813 2,040
Transfers 695 {695) - -
Total general revenues and transfers 416,149 1.591 417,740 19,635
Change in nel assels 18,813 45,578 64,391 545
Net assets - beginning 779,754 812,617 1,592,371 6176
Net assets - ending $ 798,567 $ 858,195 $ 1,656,762 6,721
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable (net)
Accounts receivable (net)
Due from other governmentis
Due from other funds
Inventortes and prepaid items
Total assels

ABILITIES AND FUND C!
Liabilities:
Accounts and confracts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Advance payments and deposils
Due to olher govemments
Due to other funds
Due to others
Deferred revenue
Tolal liabiities
Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for inventories and prepaid ilems
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Spedial revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital projects funds
Tolal fund balances
Total liabflities and fund balances

DeKalb County, Georgia
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2004
{in thousands of dollars)

Special Tax
District - Special Tax Other Total
Designated District - Governmental Governmental
General Services Unincorporated Funds Funds

21,458 $ 12,440 $ * H 181,797 $ 215,695

11,617 1,732 28,534 6,907 48,790

3,840 3 - 1,719 5,562

- - 6,858 6,858

8,597 1,423 - - 10,020

51 - - - 51
45,563 15.598 28,534 197,281 286.972‘

10,357 3,319 74 9,034 22,784

5,075 2,820 146 2,096 10,137

434 - 1,622 477 2,533

- - 345 381 726

. - 1.423 6,981 8,404

437 - - 330 767

7.859 1,106 23.881 2,085 34,931

24,162 7.245 27.4H 21,384 80,282

1,557 902 10 21,747 24,216

51 - - - 51

19,793 - - - 19,793

- 7.451 1,033 16,633 25,117

- - - 13,186 13,186

- - - 124,331 124,331

21.401 8,353 1,043 175,897 206,694

45,563 $ 15,508 $ 28,534 $ 197,281 $ 2B6.976

The notes lo the financial statements are an integral part of Lhis statement.
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DeKalb Counly, Georgia

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
To the Slatement of Net Assets
(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2004

Total fund balances for governmental funds $ 206,694
Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the Stalement of Net Assets is different because:
Capital assels used in governmental aclivilies are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 940,339

An inlernal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of risk management to individual funds. The
assets and liabilities of the risk management fund have been allocated to the governmental activities on the

Stalement of Net Assets. (4,671)
Some of the County's laxes will be collected after year-end, but are not available soon enough to pay for the current

period's expenditures, and therefore are reported as deferred revenue in the funds. 30,211
Deferred bond issuance cost is not recognized as an asset in the governmental funds. 1,647

Long-term liabililies applicable to the County's governmental activities are not due and payable in the current period
and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds,
but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. All liabilities - both current and long-term - are reported in the
Slatement of Net Assels.

Accrued interest on bonds $ (3,524)
Conlractual obligations payable (8,293)
Cerlificates of participation payable (24,525)
Bonds payable (298,920)
Unamortized premium on bonds payable (6,278)
Deferred loss on debt refunding 4,338
Net pension obligation {12,335)
Compensated absences (26,116)
Total long-term liabilities {375,653)
Total net assets of governmental activities $ 798,567

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this slatement.
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REVENUE
Taxes
Licenses and permils
Use of money and property
Intergovemmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITUIRES
Cument:
General government
Public safety
Civil and criminal court system
Planning
Public works
Community development
Parks and recreation
Library
Health and welfare
Miscellaneous
Debt service
Bonds Issuance costs
Capital outlay:
General government
Public safety
Civil and criminal court system
Public works
Community development
Parks and recreation
Library
Health and welfare
Other
Total expendituras
Excess {(deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expendilures

DOTHER FINANCING SOURCES {LISES}

Proceeds of bond issuance
Premium on bond issuance
Coentractual purchase obligations
Transfers in

Transfers oul

Total other financing sources {uses)

Net change in fund bafance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund batance - ending

DeKalb County, Georgia
Govemmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Batances
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars}

Special Tax
District - Special Tax Other Total
Designaled Distriet - Govemmental Govemnmental
General Services Unincorporated Funds Funds
S 168,705 b1 38,275 $ 53,531 s 96,118 $ 356,629
169 712 18.016 8,535 28,432
268 - 155 2,024 2,467
13,679 3,148 . 30,297 47,124
14,891 - 15,980 2,793 33674
28,740 2,469 - 15,577 46,786
5,392 52 - 2,088 7,532

231,864 44 656 88,692 157,432 522,644
53,045 - 1,024 6,128 60,197
23,630 76,338 1,245 59,194 160,407
110,284 - 2,944 2,067 115,285
1,015 - 6489 - 1,664
329 26,809 13,720 40,858

- - - 12,929 12,929

- 16,668 - 1,765 10,433

11,004 - - - 11,004
10,465 - - 23,336 33,8601
9,113 3,703 - 2,834 15,650
2,467 - - 27,347 29,814

- - - 237 237

- - E 14,410 14,410

- - - 21,354 21,354

- - - 5,760 5,760

5 - S 31,665 31,665

- - - 30 30

- . - 27,926 27,926

- - - 225 225

- = - 126 126

- - - 21 21
221,352 123,518 5,862 251,074 601,806
10,512 [78,862) 82,830 (93,642) (79,162)
- - 50,000 50,000

- - - 579 579

2918 - - 3,376 6,266
9,197 84,185 - 28,941 122,323
(23.739) (2,119) {82,877} (12,893} {121,628)
[11,624) 82,066 {82,877} 70,005 57,570
(1.112) 3,204 47} (23,637) {21,592)
22,513 5,149 1,090 199.534 238,286
5 21,401 S 8,353 3 1,043 $ 175,897 $ 208,694

The notes lo the linancial statements are an inlegral par of this stalement.

F16



DeKalb County, Georgia
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
And Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activilies
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
(amounis expressed in thousands)

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds

The change in net assels reported for governmental aclivities in the Slatement of Activities is different because:

Govemmental funds report capital oullays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assels
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
outlays ($92,676, net of $13,698 that was nol capitalized due to capitalization thresholds) and donated infrastructure assels
($23,834) exceeded depreciation ($27,234) in the current period:

Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus contribute to the change in fund balance.
In the Statement of Net Assets, however, issuing debt increases long-term liabililies and does not affect the Stalement of
Activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an expendilure in the govemmental funds but reduces the liability in the
Statement of Net Assets. This adjustment combines the net changes of the following:

Bond sales $ (50,000)
Premium on bond sales {579)
Bond issuance expense 483
Repayments of bonds 16,900
Amortization of bond issuance expense {140)
Amortization of premium on bond sales 719
Amortization of loss on bond refunding {570)

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, expenditures are not recognized for
transactions that are not normally paid with expendable available financial resources. In the Statement of Activities,
however, which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when financial
resources are available. In addilion, interest on long-term debl is not recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting unlil due, rather than as it accrues. This adjustment combines the net changes of the following:

Claims and judgments $ 500
Net pension obligation (12,335)
Compensated absences 1,913
Capital leases {3,787)
Accrued interest on bonds {2,185)

Deferred revenue in governmental funds is susceplible to full accrual on the Statement of Activities.

An intemal service fund is used by management to charge the cosis of risk management to individual funds. The net
revenue of the risk management fund is reported with governmental aclivities.

Change in net assets of govermmental aclivilies

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this stalement.

$ (21,592)

89,276

{33.187)

{15,894)

3.254

{3.044)
$ 18,813

F17



Dekalb County. Georgia

General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Non-GAAP Budgel Basis {in (housands of dollars})

Revenues:
Property taxes
Sales laxes
Other taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Invesiment income
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Curvent;
General government:
Chiefl execulive officer
Board of commissioners
Law department
Ethics
Geographic information system
Facilities management
Purchasing
Human resources and merit system
Office of Information systems
Finance
Property appraisal and assessments
Tax commissioner
Registrar and elections
Tolal general govemnment
Public safety:
Administration and communications
Animal conirol
Police
Fire and rescue services
Total public safety
Civil and criminal court system:
Sheriff
Juvenile courl
Superior court
Clerk superior court
State court
Solicitor stale court
District attomey
Child advocate
Probate Court
Medical examiner
Public defender
Magistrate court

Total civil and criminal court system

Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounls Final Budget
Budgeted Budgeted {Budgetary Over
Amounls Amounts Basis) {Under}

s 136,140 S 131,708 $ 123,253 $ (8,455)
40,000 37,762 39,887 2,125
250 6,500 5,599 {901)
180 190 169 (21)
13.928 14,990 13,679 (1.311)
29,525 29,708 28,825 {883)
13,541 14,365 14,314 {51)
68 60 328 268
3.320 3.037 5,392 2,355
236,962 238,320 231,446 (6.874)
1,768 1,768 1,628 (140)
1,046 1,046 841 {205)
2,874 2,874 2,577 {297)

2 1 1 -

1,759 1,759 {1,358) 3.117)
11,636 11,636 10,249 (1,387)
3,222 3.222 2,975 (247)
3,154 3,154 2237 (917)
10,587 10,587 7.817 {2,770)
5872 5872 5,069 (803)
4,636 4,636 4335 {301)
6,117 6,115 5876 (239)
3,586 5,204 4,226 {378}
56,259 57.874 46,473 {11,401}
5,350 5,357 1,343 {4.014)
2,109 2,107 2,041 (66)
716 714 714 -
14,826 14,826 14,060 (766}
23,001 23,004 18,158 {4,846}
61,656 61,600 59,342 (2,258)
5,688 5,652 5,700 48
7.668 7.626 6,918 {708)
4333 4,333 4,036 {297)
10,722 10,594 9.847 {947)
3,876 3,850 3,123 (727)
8,422 8.414 7,927 {487)
677 677 593 {84)
1,496 1496 1,414 (82)
1,938 1,980 1,924 {66}
5997 5,947 5,169 {778)
1,496 1,530 1,514 {16)
113,969 113,709 107,307 (6.402)

(continued)
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DeKalh County, Georgia

General Fund
Statemenl of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of dollars)

Expenditures (continued):
Current (continued):
Planning
Public works:
Administration
Economic development
Total public works
Library system
Health and welfare:
Public health
Community service board
Human and community development
Family and children services
Total health and welfare
Miscellaneous:
Cooperative extension
Non-deparimental
Total miscellaneous
Tolal expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over expenditures and other uses
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Explanation of ditferences between budget and GAAP:

Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses - budgel basis

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due to revenues:
Accrued receivables 12-31-2003
Accrued receivables 12-31-2004
Deferred revenues 12-31-2003
Deferred revenues 12-31-2004
Due to expendilures:
Accrued payables 12-31-2003
Accrued payables 12-31-2004
Encumbrances 12-31-2003
Due lo inventory changes
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

The noles lo the financial slatements are an integral part of this stalement.

{conlinued}
Actual Variance with
Qriginal Final Amounls Final Budget
Budgeted Budgeted {Budgetary Cver
Amounts Amounis Basis} {Under)
3 1,103 $ 1,103 $ 911 3 (192)
34 314 300 {14)
809 809 639 (170)
1,123 1,123 939 {184)
11,468 11,468 10,943 (525)
5,384 5,384 5,334 (50)
2,239 2,239 2,239 -
797 797 797 -
2,073 2073 1,980 (93)
10,493 10,493 10,350 {143)
1.112 1,112 1,055 (57)
26,162 23,405 7,462 (15,923)
27,274 24,517 8,537 (15,980)
244,690 243,291 203,618 (39,673}
(7.728) (4,971) 27,828 32,799
9,619 9,219 9,197 22)
(18.497) (20,854) (23,737) {2.883)
(16,606) (16,606} 13,288 29,894
16,606 16,606 16,606 -
3 - [ - 29,864 $ 29,894
13,288
(7.189)
8,260
2,649
{3.302)
4,437
{13.451)
(5.673)
131
3 (i1
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Revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
QOther taxes
Licenses and permits
Inlergovernmenial
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Invesimeni income
Miscellaneous
Tolal revenues
Expendilures:
Current:
General government:
Chief executive officer
Finance
Total general govemment
Public safety:
Police
Code enforcement
Total public safety
Chvil and criminal courl system - recorders courd
Planning
Public works:
Transportalion
Roads and drainage
Total public works
Parks and recreation
Arts, cullure, and entertainment
Miscellaneous
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of reventies over expenditures
Cther financing sourcas {uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over expenditures and other uses
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:

DeKalb County, Georgia

Statemeni of Revenues, Expendilures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgel and Aclual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
Non-GAAP Budgei Basis {in thousands of dollars)

Deficiency of revenues and other sources aver expenditures and other uses - budgel basis

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due to revenues:
Accrued recetvables 12-31-2003
Accrued receivables 12.31-2004
Defermed revenues 12-31-2003
Defemred revenues 12-31-2004
Due 1o expenditures:
Accred payables 12-31-2003
Accrued payables 12-31-2004
Encumbrances 12-31-2003
Het change in fund balance - GAAP basis

The notes lo the financial statemenis are an integral part of this stalement.

Major Specia! Revenue Funds
Special Tax District -Designaled Services
Aclual Vanance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budgel
Budgeted Budgeted {Budgetary Over
Amounls Amounts Basis) {ILnadisr
H 39,585 $ 39,727 $ 36,575 H {3,152)
1,700 1,700 1,750 50
500 500 712 212
. 3,249 3,148 {101}
3,088 3415 2,469 {948)
12 12 2 {10)
3,676 189 73 {126)
48,561 48,802 44,729 (4,073}
79,586 77.855 75,159 {2.4986)
79,585 77,655 75,159 2.405]
8,759 9,759 7,267 (2.492)
19 533 19593 18,287 (1.306)
20,352 20,352 25,554 (3.798)
17,701 17,833 16,235 {1,598)
791 791 606 1185]
3,512 3.512 2,929 (583)
130,942 129,143 120,483 {8.660)
{82,381) {80,341) {75,154) 4.587
75,599 75,599 84,185 8,586
- {2.040) {2.119) (79)
{8,782) {6.782) 6,312 13,084
86,782 6.782 8,782 -
$ - - 13,094 3 13,004
8,312
(1,258)
1,505
785
{1,106)
3,100
(5,140)
(994)
3 3,204

Major Special Revenue Funds
Special Tax District - Unincorporated
Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budgel
Budgeled Budgeted (Budgetary Over
Amounts Amounis Basis) [LUnder)

H - - $ - $ -
20,600 20,600 21,118 519
29,925 29,925 32,389 2464
18,406 18,621 19,016 295

215 - a >
13,454 13,454 15,990 2.536
15 15 155 140
82,615 82,615 BB,669 6,054
107 107 107 »
3,126 1,126 1,079 {47)
1,233 1,233 1,168 {47)
1,325 325 ,200 (125)
1,325 325 200 (125)
3317 3.317 2,588 (431)
737 137 647 {90}
912 723_ a7 (854)
7,524 7335 5.748 (1.587)
75,091 75,2 82,521 7.641
(75.599) {75,788} {62.877) {7,089)
(508) {508) 44 552
508 508 508 _ -
$ - - 552 $ 552
44
(22,110)
24,544
22,070
(23,881}
15
{172}
{57[
$ (47)
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DeKalt County, Georgia

Proprietary Funds S| t of Nel Assets
December 31, 2004
{in thousands of doltars}
Waler and Cther Total Intemal
Sewerage Enterprise Entarprise Servica
ASSETS System Sanitation Funds Funds. Funds
Cumrent assets:
Cash and cash equivalants H 10,283 3 42,441 $ 14,166 H 66,910 4 5070
Accounts receivable (net) 30,464 3242 B6D 34 566 5
Due from other govermnments ar72 - 459 133 -
Inventosies and prepaid items 2,472 o - 2472 1,588
Restricled.
Cash and cash equivalents 104,970 - - 104,970 -
Total cusmend assels 145,061 45 683 15,505 210,249 56.658
Noncurrent assels:
Deferred bond issuanca cosis 10,123 . - 10,122 -
Capitat assats (naf} 1,022.419 37,220 46 439 1,106,178 39643
Totaf noncuTent assals 1,032,542 37,320 46 439 1,118,301 39613
Total assets 1,181,603 83,003 81,544 1,326 550 95271
LIABILIMES
Curment kabiities:
Accounts payable 4,704 1,229 1612 7.545 3,15
Claims end judgments payabla, curent portion - - - - 8,046
Obligation under capital leases, curent portion . g - - 1,827
Cther accrued Habilities 1222 57 ag 2,018 247
Advanca paymems and deposils 192 . 7 199 -
Due io othes govemnmments 2,189 = - 2,189 -
Payable from restricied assets:
Accounts payable 4,196 - 5 4,186 .
Revenus bonds payable, currenl portion 8915 - - 6,915 .
Accrued Interest on revenus bonds 6,199 - - 6,189 -
Due io others 10,305 - - 10,305 _ -
Total cumer Eabdities 35922 4,086 1,858 39,566 13.271
Noncurmen liabities,
Claims and judgments payabla, long lerm porion - - - - 4,428
Landfill closure and posiclosure cost - 15283 - 15,283 -
Obligation under capital leases, long ienm portion - - - - 1,700
Compensaled sbsences payable 2,789 1,528 94 4411 569
Revenue bonds payabie, long term portion 490,800 - - 490,900 -
Unamortized premium on bonds payabla 7.582 - - 7,582 -
Delerred kiss on debt refuriding (847D . - {8,422} -
Total noncuerrent iablities 492,049 18,811 94 500,754 8,706
Total Eabiities 528771 18,797 1,752 549 320 18,977
NET ASSETS
invasled in capital assets, net of related debt 575437 30 48,439 659,198 38077
Restricted for debt service 7.747 - - 7.747 -
Rastricted for capital projects 50,833 . . 50,823 -
Unrestricted 18815 26,806 13,753 §9.454 40,217
Total nat assets s 652,832 $ 54,206 $ 50,192 777230 3 76,294
Adjustment 1o refiact the consolidation of intemal service fund activitios related 1o enterprise funds 80.965
Net assels of business-ype activities 5 858,195

The notas to the i ial are an integrel parl of this statement,



DeKalb County, Georgia F22
Proprielary Funds
Statemenl of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assels
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
(In thousands of dollars}

Water and Other Total Internal
Sewerage Enterprise Enterprise Service
Operating revenues: System Sanilation Funds Funds Funds
Metered sales $ 106,962 $ - $ - $ 106,982 $ -
Collection and disposal fees - 57,111 - 57,111 -
Rental fees - - 3477 3177 -
Intergovermmental - - - - 71
Charges for services - - 16.693 16,693 103,076
Miscellaneous 8,368 1,294 1 9,663 273
Total operaling revenues 115,350 58,405 19,871 193,626 103,420
Operaling expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits 35,840 22,263 1,122 59,225 7,065
Supplies 11,635 1,485 1,119 14,239 10,723
Operating services and charges 20,485 16,411 5,039 41,935 69,050
Leasehold operaling expenses 11,987 - - 11,987 -
Miscellaneous 980 674 - 1,654 386
Depreciation and amortization 24,694 2,147 505 27,246 20,704
Labor, overhead, and vehicle charges capitalized (5,391) - - {5,391) -
Tota! operating expenses 100,230 42,980 7.785 150,995 108,008
Operating income (loss) 15,120 15,425 12,086 42,631 {4.588)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest income 1,806 394 86 2,286 378
Interest expense (12,618) - - (12,618) (172)
Loss on sale of capital assets - - - - {2,563)
Income (loss) before capilal donalions and transfers 4,208 15,819 12,172 32,299 (6,945)
Capital donations 17,285 - 590 17,875 -
Transfers in 250 - - 250 -
Transfers out - - (875) (875) (70)
Change in net assets 21,843 15,819 11,887 49,649 (7,015)
Net assets - beginning 630,989 48,387 48,305 83309
Net assets - ending $ 652,832 $ 64,206 $§ 60,192 $ 76,294
Adjusiment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund aclivities related to enlerprise funds (3.971)
Change in net assels of business-type aclivilies s 45,578

The notes to the financial stalements are an inlegral part of this statement.



Cash flows from operaiing activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments lo supphers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Other operating revenues
et cash provided by operaling activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers (to) / from other funds
Net cash provided (required) by noncapital financing activilies

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and consiruction of capltal assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Principal and interest paid on revenue bonds
Payments on leases
Increase in escrow deposits
Capital donations
Net cash required by capital and related financing activilies

Cash flows from investing aclivities:
Interest on investments
Net cash provided by invesling activities

Net increasa (dacraasa) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalenis al beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalants al end of year

Reconciliation of operaling income to net cash pravided by operating activities:

Operating income (loss}

DeKalb County, Georgia

Adjustments lo reconcile operaling income {loss) {o net cash provided by operating activilies:

Depreciation and amoriizalion

Change in assels and Eabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables
{Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in payables
Increase {decrease} in other habikties
Increase {decrease) in advance deposits

Net cash provided by operating aclivilies

Noncash capital donations

The notes to the financial statements are an inlegral part of this statemant.

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
{in thousands of dofars)
Water and Otlher Total Intermnal
Sewerage Enterprise Enterprise Service
System Sanitation Funds Funds Funds
s 101,293 54,132 $ 19,162 - 174,587 $ 103,420
(35,152) {19,880) {5.060) (60,101) {75,805)
(35.572) {22,318) {1,117} {59.007) (7.107)
8,201 1,122 1 9,324 -
33,770 13,047 12,986 64,803 20,508
250 - (875) (525) {70
250 - {B75) {625) (70)
(94.267) {3,543) {1.507) {99,317} {11,003}
- = - - 798
(31,500) e . {31,500) g
(48) S = (48) {2,348}
365 - - 365 -
10,985 - 415 11,400 -
{114,465) {3,543} {1,092} (119,100) £12,553)
1,806 394 Ba 2,288 378
1,806 394 an 2,288 378
{73,639) 9,808 3,079 {60,662) 8,263
188,862 32,543 1107 232,542 46,807
115,253 42,441 14,186 171,880 55,070
15,120 15,425 12,086 42,631 {4,588)
24,694 2,147 505 27,346 20,784
(5.639) (3,151) (643) {9.433) .
(283) . - (283) (111)
4,562 {1.531) 1,031 4,062 4,31
305 157 5 467 52
11 - 2 13 -
38,770 13,047 12,986 64,803 20,508
$ 5,300 - S 590 $ 6,890 L] -
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments:
US Government Securities
Collateralized mortgage obligations
Corporate Bonds
Corporate Stocks
Accrued interest receivable
Taxes receivable
Due from others
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds

Due to others
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits
and other purposes (see Note SE)

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.

General
Employees' Agency
Pension Funds
$ 103,126 28,660
152,045 -
38,012 -
102,998 -
729,962 -
3,537 -
- 26,903
5,229
1,134,909 55,563
531 -
1,616 -
123 55,563
2,270 55,563
_$ 1132639
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

Additions:
Contributions:
Employer
Employee
Other
Total contributions
Investment earnings:
Dividends and interest
Net increase in fair market value of investments
Total investment earnings
Less investment expense
Net investment earnings
Total additions

Deductions:
Benefit payments
Refunds of contributions
Administrative expenses
Total Deductions
Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

General
Employees'
Pension

$ 1,320
1,385
72

2,777

27,551
71,958

99,509
(4,120)

95,389

98,166

51,561
235
325

52,121

46,045

1,086,594

$ 1,132,639

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Component Units
Statement of Net Assets

December 31, 2004
(In thousands of dollars)

Public
Board of Library

ASSETS Health Board Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,310 $ 520 $ 2,830
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 343 - 343
Investments - 673 673
Accounts receivable {net) 1,712 26 1,738
Due from other governments 2,145 - 2,145
Prepaid items 68 - 68
Capital assets (net) 1,380 481 1,861

Total assets 7,958 1,700 9,658
LIABILITIES
Accounts and contracls payable 1 104 105
Due to other governments 1,265 - 1,265
Deferred revenue 88 - 88
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year - 34 34

Due in more than one year 1,445 - 1,445

Total liabilities 2,799 138 2,937
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) 1,380 447 1,827
Restricted 343 - 343
Unrestricted 3,436 1,115 4,551

Total net assels $ 5,159 3 1,562 $ 6,721

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Component Units
Statement of Activilies

Year Ended December 31, 2004
(tn thousands of dollars)

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assels

Program Revenues Public
Charges for Operating Grants Board of Library
Expenses Sermvices and Centributions Health Board Total
Board of Health $ 29,006 ] 6,059 $ 16,401 $ (6,546) $ - $ (6,546}
Public Library Board 13,257 665 48 - {12,544) (12,544)
Tolal component units  § 42 263 S 6,724 b 16,449 (6,546) (12,544) (15,090)
General revenues:
Intergovernmental, not restricled for specific programs - 1,114 1,114
Payments from DeKalh County 5,151 11,319 16,470
Unrestricted investment earnings - " 1"
Miscellaneous 1,878 162 2,040
Total general revenues 7,029 12,606 19,635
Change in nel assels 483 62 545
Net assets - beginning 4,676 1,500 6,176

Netl assets - ending

The notes to the financial statemenls are an integral part of this statement.

5 5,159 ] 1,562 $ 6721
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DEKALB COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2004
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies

The financial statements have been prepared in conformily with generally accepted accounling principles (GAAP) as apptied to governmental units. The Govemmental
Accounting Standards Board {GASB) is the accepled slandard setting body for governmental units. The County's significant accounting policies are described below.

(A) The Financial Reporting Entity

DeKalb County, Georgia {the "County") was created by legislative act in 1822, and operates under an elected Chief Executive Officer and County Commission (seven
members) form of government. As required by GAAP, the financial statements of the financial reporting entity include those of DeKalb County (the primary government), and
its component units. Also, the fiduciary activities of the County’s pension plan and various conslitutional officers, judges, and other judicial officials are included in the
fiduciary funds. These include the Tax Commissioner, Sheriff, Clerk of Superior Court, Stale Court, State Court Probation, Juvenile Court, Probate Court, and Magistrate
Court.

The companent units discussed below are included in the County's financial reporting enlity because of the County's financial accountability for the entities and the
significance of their operational and financial relationships with the County. in conformity with GAAP, the financial stalements of the DeKalb County Board of Health and the
Deialb County Public Library Board have been included as discretely presented component units. The component unils column in the financial slatements includes the
financial data for the County's two component units, as reflected in their most recent audited financial statements. These component units are reported in a column

separate from the County's financial information to emphasize that they are legally separate from the County. The following discretely presented component units are
incorporated into the County's financial report:

DeKalb County Board of Health - The governing board of the Board of Health consisls of seven members: The Chief Executive Officer of the County, the Superintendent
of the DeKalb County Board of Education {both by virlue of their offices). three members appointed by the County Commission, and two members appointed by other
jurisdictions. The County, by virtue of its appointments and the presence of the Chiel Exacutive Officer on the board, conlrols a majority of the Board of Health's
goveming body positions, Although the County does not have the authority to approve or modify the Board of Healih's operational and capita! budgets, it does have the
ability to control the amount of funding it provides to the Board of Health. Such funding is significant to the overall operations of the Board of Health.

DeKalb County Public Library Board - The governing board of the Public Library Board consists of twelve members: the Chief Execulive Officer of the County, the
Execulive Assistant to the Chief Executive Officer {both by virtue of their offices), eight members appointed by the County Commission, and two members appointed by
other jurisdictions. The County, by virtue of its appoiniments and the presence of the Chief Executive Officer and the Executive Assistant to the Chief Executive Officer on
the Board, conlrols a majority of Public Library Board governing body posilions. Although the County does not have the authority lo approve or madify the Public Library
Board's operational and capital budgets, it does have the ability to control the amaunt of funding it provides to the Public Library Board. Such funding is significant io

the overall operations of the Public Library Board.

Both component unils have June 30 year-ends, consistent with the praclice of most organizations receiving significant funding from the State.

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be oblained directly from their administrative offices. Addresses for these administrative offices
are as follows:



(8)

DeKalb County Board of Health DeKalb County Public Library Board
445 Winn Way Richardson Health Center 215 Sycamore Street
Decatur, GA 30030 Decatur, GA 30030

In 2003, the County established the DeKalb County Building Authority (the *Building Authority”) which is governed by a board comprised solely of memnbers appointed by the
CEO and Board of Commissicners. Although it is legally separate from the County's Board of Commissioners, the Building Authority is reparted as if it were a part of the
primary government, as a blended component unit, because its sole purpose is to finance and construct County public buildings. The Building Authority's funds are

included as non-major debt service and capital projects funds. No separale financial statements are available.

The County is also responsible for appoinling the members of the DeKalb County Housing Authority, but the County's accountability for the Authority does not extend
beyond making the appoiniments.

The Fullon-DeKalb Hospital Authorily is considered a joint venture with Fulton County, Georgia. The Atlanta Regional Commission is considered a joint venture with
other govemments of metropolilan Atlanta.

Basis of presentation

The govemment-wide financial statements (l.e. , the Statement of Net Assels and the Statement of Activities) display informalion about the primary government and its
component units. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the
double-counting of internal activities. These statements dislinguish between the governmental and business-type aclivities of the County. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, inlargovernmental revenues, and olher non-exchange transactions. Business-type aclivilies are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different business-type aclivities of the County and for each
function of the Counly’s governmental aclivilies. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associaled with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
idantifiable to a particular function. Administrative overhead charges are included in direct expenses for the business-type activities. Program revenues include 1) fees,
fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and 2) grants and conlributions that are restricted to meeling the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and olher items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

The fund financial stalements provide information about the County’s funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statemenis for each fund category - governmental,
proprielary, and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and proprietary funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary funds dislinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally resull from providing services
and producing and delivering goods in connection with the funds principal ongoing operaticns. The principal operaling revenues of the County's proprietary funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operaling expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assels.
All revenues and expenses not meeting these definilions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, other governmental units, and/or other funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, itis the government's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they
are needed.
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The County reports the following major govemmental funds:

The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted
for in another fund.

The Special Tax District Designated Services Fund accounts for operations of the County's police, roads and drainage, and recreation depariments. Financing is
provided by a specific annual property tax levy and operating transfers from the special tax district unincorporated fund. Such property taxes are used only to
provide police, roads and drainage, and recreation services for all residents of the County not provided with these services by other municipalities.

The Special Tax District Unincorporated Fund accounts for operations of various County activilies which collect revenues that are restricted for use in the
unincorporated areas of the County.

The County reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Waler and Sewerage System Fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer services to the residents of the County. All activities necessary to provide
such services are accounted for in this fund.

The Sanitation Fund accounts for the provision of sanitation services to residents of the County. Al activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for
in this fund.

The County reports the following fiduciary funds:

The General Employees' Pension Fund accounts for accumulated resources for pension benefit payments to qualified County employees.

The agency funds account for the assels held by the County in a trustee capacity as an agent for individuals, govermmental units, and/or other funds.
The County reports the following other fund types:

Internal service funds account for vehicle maintenance, vehicle reptacement, and risk management refated activilies provided to other depariments of the County on
a cosl reimbursement basis.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

The govemment-wide financial stalements are reporied using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary
fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Granis and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial slatements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are

recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the curent period or soon
enough thereafter o pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end
of the current fiscal period, with the exception of granis which are recognized when all efigibility requirements have been met. Expenditures generally are recorded when
a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capilal asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
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Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have
been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All olher revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government.

All governmental and business-lype activities of the County follow FASE Statements and Interpretalions issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles
Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements. The County has elected nol to follow the option
allowed under GASB Stalement 20 and thus does not follow any FASB Slalements issued after November 30, 1989.

Budgetary Data

An operating budget is legally adopted each fiscal year for all governmental funds except capital projects funds. The level of control (the level at which expenditures
may nol legally exceed appropriations) for each legally adopted annual operating budget is the department level. Supplemenlal appropriations may be made annually
at mid-year by the Board of Commissioners. Supplemental appropriations are also made out of the County's General Fund contingency account by the Board of
Commissioners to fund unforeseen expenditures within the Counly's governmental funds at any time during the year. Presenled final budgelary informalion reflects all
supplemental appropriations as legally adopled by the Board of Commissioners. Individual amendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations.
The Board of Commissioners mus! approve any department level changes to a previously adopted budget. Management may amend the budget without secking the
approval of the Board at any level below the department level.

In accordance with Georgia law, the County has project length balanced budgels for all capital projects funds.
The annual budget cycle begins in September of the preceding year when budget workbooks are distributed to each department. The County Code requires that the
Chief Executive Officer of the County submit a proposed budget to the Board of Commissioners by December 15, The Chief Executive Officer and Board of

Commissioners advertise and conduct public hearings on the proposed budget in adherence to local ordinance and state law and adopt a final budget prior to March 1.

The tax millage is set and tax bills are issued around July 1. A revised budget, based on fund balance carryovers and current revenue and expenditure trends, may be
adopted prior to this date. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, coniracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the

approprialion, is employed in the governmental funds.
Property Taxes

Property tax billing and collection cycle dales are as follows: lien date - January 1 of each year; levy date - Fourth Tuesday in June; due dates - August 15 and November
15; and collection dales - anytime during the year.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash management pools which are used essentially as demand deposit accounts and investments with maturities within 80 days of purchase are considered cash
equivalents for purposes of the stalement of cash flows. Investments are stated at fair value, based on quoted markel prices, The Georgia Fund 1 (a local government
investment pool) is not SEC registered, but is operated in a manner consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the lnvestment Company Act of 1940. Therefore, fair value of
the County's investment in the Georgia Fund 1 is based on the price of the County’s share in the pool. The Georgia Office of Treasury and Fiscal Services is the agency
with regulatory oversight for Georgia Fund 1.
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Inventories

Inventories are determined by actual physicat count and are slated at cost {using average cost flow assumptions) for the governmental activities and at the lower of
average cost or market for the business-type activities. The consumplicn method is used to account for inventories.

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assels are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
donation. General infrastruclure assels consisl of the road network assels that were acquired or that received subslantial improvemenls subsequent to January 1, 1980
and are reported at estimated historical cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or malerially extend assets lives are
not capitalized. The Counly capitalized $11,844,000 of interest incurred in business-type aclivilies for the year. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives and with the following capilalization thresholds:

Estimated

Useful Lives Capilalization
Asset Class {In years) Threshold
Buildings 20-50 $40,000 - 100,000
Land improvements 15-50 30,000 - 100,000
Infrastructure 10-50 20,000 - 100,000
Vehicles 1-10 2,000
Equipment ] 1,000

Restricted Assets

Proceeds from the sale of water and sewer revenue bonds plus interest eamed on the investment of these funds are restricted to the construction of new capital facilities
and other improvements to the water and sewerage system. All monies in excess of those required to maintain the working capital of the water and sewerage system's
operations are transferred to a separate account and restricted to the construction of new capitat facilities and other expenditures as allowed by the system's bond
resolutions. Sinking fund monies are restricted to the payment of bond principal and interest requirements as they become due as well as the maintenance of required
reserves. Liabililies payable from these restricted assets are reported separalely to indicate that the source of payment is the restricted assels.

Claims, Judgments, and Compensated Absences

Liabiities for claims and judgments against the County, including estimaled liabilities for claims incurred but not reported at year-end, have been accrued in the appropriate
funds. Liabilities for compensated absences have been accrued in the governmenl-wide and proprietary fund financial statements and are all considered long-term
obligations of the County. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured.

Employees eam annual leave at the rale of 15 days per year for the first 5 years up to a maximum of 30 days per year after 25 years. There is no requirement that annual
leave be taken, bul the maximum permissible accumulation at year end is 60 days. Any accumulation of annual leave greater than 60 days is converted to sick leave at
year end. Al termination, employees are paid for any accumulated annual leave up to the 60 day maximum. Employees earn sick leave at the rate of 13 days per year with
no limitations. At termination accumulated sick leave is converted 1o annual leave at the rate of 15 days to 1 day and is subject to the 60-day limilation.



(L) Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

Stale and federal laws and requlations require the County to place a final cover on ils Seminole Road landfill when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain
maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after closure. Although closure and posiclosure care costs will be paid only near or afier the date that the
landfill stops accepling waste, the County reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill
capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $15,283,000 reporied as landfill closure and postclosure cost liability at year-end represents the cumulative amount
reported to dale based on the use of 88% of the estimaled capacity of the landfill, net of related expenditures to date of $8,357,000. The County will recognize the
remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of $3,223,000 as the remaining eslimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to
perform all closure and postclosure in 2004.  Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations. Closure and posiciosure care
financial assurance requirements will be met by adjusting the sanitation rate struclures in the business-type activilies as required. The County expects to close the
current landfill in the year 2007 but has already acquired enough additional land 1o meet landfill needs through 2019.

(M) Reclassifications
Cerain reclassifications have been made to the 2003 totals lo conform fo the classifications used in 2004.
{N) Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management o make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and the reported amount of revenues and expenditures / expenses during the reporting period. Actual resulls could differ from those eslimates.

. Joint Ventures

DeKalb County is party to a contract with Fulton County and the Fullon-DeKalb Hospital Authority {the "Authority"} for the operation of Grady Memorial Hospital {the "Hospital").

The Hospital provides health services to indigent citizens of both counties, Three members of the Authority’s Board of Trustees are appointed by the DeKalb County Board of
Commissioners with another seven members appointed by the Fulton County Board of Commissioners. The enlire operations of the Authority are disclosed as a

component unit in the Fullon County, Georgia Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. DeKalb County has a financial interest in the Authority because operaling deficits of
the Hospital, up to an annually predetermined amount, relaling to indigent care must be funded by Fulton County or DeKalb County under the terms of the contract. The
funding formula is based on the ratio of patient levels between the two counties. For the year, DeKalb County funded $14,541,000 of the Hospital's operating deficit. DeKalb
County has limited conirol over the operating budget of the Hospilal but must approve any debl issuance of the Authority. The Authority's debt is secured by a pledge of the
operating revenues of the Hospital, Payments to the Authority are rmade from the County's other governmental funds. Separale financial statements may be obtained from:
Fulton-DeKalb Hospital Authority; 80 Butler St SE; Atlanta Georgia 30314.

Condensed financial information for the Authority as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 is as follows {in thousands of dollars) (December 31, 2004 amounts are
unavailable):

Total Assels $ 474911 Total Operaling Revenues $ 534,160
Total Liabilities $ 433,590 Total Operating Expenses $ 661,489
Total Net Assets $ 41,321 Nonoperating Revenue (Net) $ 22592
Current Debt $ 4,500 Fulton County and DeKalb County Contributions $ 104956
Long-Term Debt $ 273,000 Increase in Net Assels 3 219
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Under Georgia law, the County, in conjunction with other cities and counlies in metropolitan Atlania, is a member of the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) and is required
to pay annual dues thereto. During the past year, the County paid $674,160 in such dues. Membership in the ARG is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated
{OCGA) Section 50-8-34 which provides for the organizalional structure of the ARC. The ARG Board membership includes the chief elected official of each county and
municipality of the area. OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of the ARC. Separate financial statements may be
obtained from: Atlanta Regional Commission; 40 Courtland St NE; Atianta Georgia 30303.

There were no known related party transactions involving either joint venture.

. Budget Basis of Accounting

Due to legal requiremenls, revenues and appropriations for governmental funds are budgeted on a basis that is not consistent with GAAP. The aclual results of operations
on the budget basis for the General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds are presented in this report.

The major differences between the budget and GAAP are:
{1) Revenues (principally property taxes, accounts receivable, grants, and interest receivables) are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to
when susceplible lo accrual (GAAP),
(2) Expenditures (principally payroll, workers' compensation, and purchases} are recorded when paid {budget) as opposed to when incurred (GAAP);
(3) Debt service requirements due January 1. 2005 are recorded as expenditures in 2004 (budget) as opposed to 2005 when obligatiens are due (GAAP);

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

The County maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all County funds, except for certain of the trust and agency funds. In addition, cash, cash
equivalents and invesiments are separately held by other funds, including the General Employees' Pension Fund. Atyear-end, the carrying amount of the County's deposils
was $63,625,000 and the bank balance was $70,044,000. All of the bank balance was covered by fedaral depository insurance or by collateral held by the County's
custodial bank in the County's name.

Statutes authorize the Counly to invest in obligations of the Uniled States Treasury or Agencies, banker's acceptances, bank money market accounts, repurchase agreements,
and the Georgia Fund 1 {a local government investment pool). The General Employees’ Pension Fund is also authorized to invest in corporate bonds and debentures which
are not in default as lo principal and interest; corporate stocks, common or preferred; first loans on real estale where the loans are guaranteed by the Administrator of
Veterans Affairs or by the Federal Housing Authority of the United States: certificales of deposil in national banks and state banks insured by the FDIC; and any other
investiments approved by the Pension Board. The Pension Trust Fund also invests in collateralized mortgage obligations {CMOs). These securities are based on cash

flows from interest and principal payments on underlying morigages. CMOs are sensitive to prepayments by mortgages, which may result from a decline in interest rates.

The Counly invests in these securities in part to maximize yields and in part to hedge against a rise in interest rates.

The County's invesimenls are categorized below fo give an indication of the level of credit risk assumed by the County at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are
insured or registered, or securities held by the Counly's agent (the County's custodial bank) in the County's name. Calegory 2 includes investments that are uninsured and
unregistered, with securilies held by the counter party’s trust department or agent in the Counly's name. Calegory 3 includes uninsured and unregistered with securities held
by the counter party’s trust department or agent but not in the County’s name. The following amounts are in thousands of dollars:



U.S.Government securities
Cerlificates of deposit
CMO's
Corporate stocks
Corporate bonds

Tolal Calegorized Investmenls
Mutual funds

Investiment in State of Georgia investment pools

Tolal Investmenis

. Allowance For Uncollectible Receivables

Category

1 2 3 Tolal
$ 152045 § - 8 $§ 152,045
673 - 673
38,012 - 38.012
729,962 - 729,962
102,998 - 102,958
$1,023690 § - 8 1,023,690
238,085
275,895

1537670

Allowances for uncollectible receivables at December 31 are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Governmental activities:

Taxes receivable $ 996
Accounts receivable 11,587
$ 12583

. Due From Other Governments

Business-type aclivilies:
Accounts receivable

Amounts due from other governments at December 31 are as follows {in thousands of dollars):

Governmental activities:

Housing & Urban Development 1] 4,307
US Department of Justice 2431
Georgia Department of Labor 84
Other 336

Total $ 6858

Business-type activities:
Federal Aviation Administration
Other local governmenls
Tolal

Component Unils:
Miscellaneous State Agencies

$

$
$

3

5,690

459
872
1,331

2,145
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Changes in capilal assets are as follows (in thousands of dollars): Accumulated Accumulated
Depreciation Depreciation
and and Book
Balance Balance Amortization Amoriization Value
12/31/2003 Additions Deletions 12/31/2004 12/31/2003 Additions Deletions 12/31/2004  12/31/2004
Governmental activities
Not depreciated:
Land $ 177753 $ 23763 % - § 201,516 $ 201,516
Construction in progress 65,477 86 - 65,563 65,563
Depreciated:
Land improvements 26,509 - - 26509 $ 10483 % 583 § - $ 11,066 15,443
Buikdings 252,879 54,368 - 307,247 67.537 6,009 - 73,546 233,701
Infrastructure 493,642 31N - 524,773 109,064 11,167 - 120,231 404,542
Other equipment 52,564 7.162 {17,538) 42,188 30,677 9,475 (17,538) 22,614 19,574
Totals 51068824 § 116510 & (17,538) $1,467796 § 217,761 $ 27234 § (17538 § 227457 § 940,339
Business-type activities
Not deprecialed:
Land $ 40620 $ 1049 % - § 41669 $ 41,669
Construction in progress 208,357 87.115 - 295472 295,472
Depreciated:
Land improvemenis 56,615 200 (102) 56,713 § 12319 % 1924 $ {(102) $ 14141 42,572
Buildings 11,733 - - 11,733 6,073 3a7 - 6,410 5,323
Planls 159,864 - - 159,864 55,405 3,149 - 58,554 101,310
Lines 588,991 21,119 {2,382) 607,728 167,050 11,967 (2,382) 176,635 431,093
Waler meters 47,260 5,485 (787} 51,958 16,133 3179 (787) 18,525 33,433
Vehicles and portable
equipment 127,959 10,992 (8,536) 130,415 77,451 20,471 {5,175) 92,747 37,668
Other equipment 19,147 1,530 {1,969) 18,708 9,170 3,099 (1,969) 10,300 8,408
Leaseholds 169,411 - - 169,411 17,091 3477 - 20,568 148,843
Totals $1429057 § 127490 $ (13776) $1.543671 § 360692 S 47603 3 (10445) § 397880 §1,145791
Component units
Depreciated:
Other equipment 5 4905 § i s {5556) % 4681 § 2754 § 621 § (558) $ 2820 % 1861




Governmental activilies;

Generzl government $ 4,387
Public safely 3,883
Civil and criminal court system 3,598
Planning 32
Public works 11,383
Community development 56
Library 613
Parks and recreation 1,184
Health and welfare 991
Miscellaneous 1,107

$ 27.234

Governmental activities
Parks and recreation
Health centers
Public safety facilities
Court facilities
General government facilities
Infrastructure

Tolals

Business-type acfivities
Walter and sewer facilities
Sanitation facilities
Airport facilities

Totals

Conslruction in progress at December 31 is composed of the following (in thousands of dollars):

Depreciation was charged to functions / programs of the primary government as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Business-type acliviies
Water and sewerage system
Sanitation
DeKalb-Peachtree Airport
Vehicle maintenance
Vehicle replacement

$ 24,166
2,147

505

313

20.471

$ 47602

Project Expended Required
Authoriza- as of Future
tion 1213112004 Committed Financing
$ 40146 3 5765 % 34381 § -
75 41 710 -
33,057 20,407 12,650 -
26,647 5,669 20,978 -
34,760 18,327 19,406 -
38,676 15,354 20,349 -
$ 174037 § 65563 $ 108474 § -
$ 319,861 $ 288583 § 31278 § -
29,677 3,112 26,565 -
3,777 3,777 - E
$ 353315 § 295472 § 57843 § -
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B. Long-Term Obligations

Changes in long-lerm obligations for the year are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Balance Paymenis/ Balance Current Long-term
12/31/2003 Addilions Relirements 12/31/2004 Portion Porlion
Governmental aclivilies
Claims and judgments payable $ 10,792 § 59,011 § (57329) % 12474  § B046 & 4,428
Net pension obligation - 12,335 - 12,335 - 12,335
Compensated absences payable 28,029 - (1.913) 26,116 - 26,116
Capital leases 4,509 5,783 (1,999} 8.293 3,357 4,935
General obligation bonds payable 250,345 - {15,845} 234,500 15,635 218,865
Revenue bonds payable 15,000 50,000 {580) 64,420 1,490 62,930
Certificates of participation payable 25,000 - {475) 24,525 485 24,040
Unamortized premium on bonds payable 6,419 578 {719) 6,278 709 5,569
Deferred loss on bond refunding {4,908} - 570 {4,338) {532} (3,806)
Totals $ 335186 $ 127,707 § (78290) § 384603 § 29190 § 355413
Business-type aclivities
Landfill closure and posiciosure cost $ 17413 § - 85 (21300 S8 15283 § - $ 15283
Compensaled absences payable 5,323 - (343) 4,980 - 4,980
Contraclual obligations payable 219 - (219) - - -
Capital leases 5,712 - (2,176) 3,536 1,827 1,709
Revenue bonds payable 605,365 - {7.550) 497,815 6,915 490,900
Unamortized premium on bonds payable 8,000 - {418) 7,582 - 7,582
Deferred loss on bond refunding {9,139) - 717 (8,422} - (8,422)
Totals $ 532893 § - § (12119) § 520,774 § B742 $ 512,032
Companent Uni
Compensated absences payable s 1,446 § - 8 (1} § 1,445 § - $ 1,445
Contractual obligations payable 60 - (26} 34 34 -
$ 1,506 § - 8 {27y § 1479 § 34 8 1,445

Governmental activities:

Claims and judgments payable typically have been liquidated in the other governmental funds and in the inlernal service funds. Compensated absences payable have
typically been liquidated in the General Fund, the Special Tax Districl-Designated Services Fund, the Special Tax District-Unincorporated Fund, other governmental
funds, and in the internal service funds. Capital leases have typically been liquidated in the General Fund, other governmental funds, and the internal service funds.



The following is a schedule by years of future minimum installment purchase payments on capilal leases in the governmental activities with the present value of the net
minimum payments as of December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Year Payable Principal Interest Total
2005 $ 3,357 $ 237 $ 3,594
2006 3,402 118 3,520
2007 1,473 26 1,499
2008 61 - 61
Totals $ 8203 § 381 $ 8,674

For financial accounling and reporting purposes, all govemmental aclivities bonds refunded (a total of $125,145,000) are considered defeased and, along with the funds
held in trust are not included in the accompanying financial stalemenis.

The following is a summary of the County's outstanding general obligation bond issues at December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Year Interest Interest Issue Maturity Authorized
Issued Purpose Rate (%) Dates Date Date and Issued Retired Outstanding

1992 Refunding issue 6.00 -1 74 12/01/92 01/01/20 $ 64775 $ 55705 $ 9,070
1998 Jail 5.00 11 71 08/01/98 0101120 2,000 - 2,000
2001 Parks 3.50-5.00 6-1 1241 10/01/01 1210115 125,000 24,090 100,910
2003 Refunding issue 3.00-5.00 1-1 71 07/22/103 01/01/20 53,295 5,395 47,900
2003 Refunding issue 3.00-5.00 11 71 12/05/03 01/01/20 74,620 - 74,620

Tolals $ 319690 $ 55705 $ 234,500

The following is a summary of general obligation bonds debl service requirements lo maturity as of December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Year Payable Principal Interest Total
2005 $ 15,635 $ 10478 % 26,113
2006 15,985 9,789 25,774
2007 16,410 8,599 25,409
2008 17,810 8,227 26,037
2009 18,435 7,393 25,828

2010-2014 86,350 25,312 111,662
2015-2019 53,860 7.910 61,770
2020 10,015 241 10,256
Totals $ 234500 §$ 78349 § 312,849

The County is subject lo the laws of the State of Georgia, which limit the amounl of net bonded debt {exclusive of revenue bonds) the County may have oulstanding to
10% of the assessed valuation of taxable property within the County. At year-end, general obligation bonds outstanding, net of amounis available in the Debt Service
Funds, totaled $221,318,000. The statutory limit at that date was $2,233,000,000, providing a debt margin of $2,011,682,000.
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The following is a summary of the Counly's outslanding Cerlificates of Participation at December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Year Interest Interest Issue Maturity Authorized
Issued Purpose Rate (%) Dates Date Date and Issued Retired Qutstanding
2003  Office building and courthouse 2.50-4.75 6-112-1 10/14/03 12/01/23 $ 25000 $% 475 $ 24,525

The following is a summary of Certificates of Parlicipation debt service requirements to maturity as of year end {in thousands of dollars):

Interest
Year Payable Rate (%] Principal Interest Total
2005 225 5 485 § 994 3 1,479
2006 2.25 970 983 1,953
2007 25 995 961 1,956
2008 2.875 1,020 937 1,957
2009 3125 1,045 907 1,952
2010-2014 4.004.50 5,855 3,912 9,767
2015-2019 4.10-4.50 7,180 2,594 8,774
2020-2023 4.50-4.75 6.975 838 7.813
Totals $ 24525 § 12126 % 36,651

In December 2004, the Public Safety and Judicial Facilities Authority issued $50,000,000 of DeKalb County Public Safety and Judicial Facilities Authority Revenue Bonds. The
proceeds of which will be used to purchase and renovate various buildings for use by the Public Safety Department.

The following is a summary of the County’s outstanding govemmental aclivilies revenue bond issues at December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Year Interest Interast Issue Maturity Authorized
Issued Purpose Rate (%) Dates Date Date and Issued Retired Oulstanding
2003  Juvenile Justice Center 2.0-50 6-1 1241 07101103 12/01/20 $ 15000 $ 580 $ 14,420
2004  Public Safely and Judicial Facilities 3.0-5.0 61 1241 12/29/04 12/01/34 50,000 - 50,000

$ 65000 § 580 $ 64,420

The following is a summary of the County's governmental aclivilies revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity as of December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Interest
Year Payable Rate (%) Principal Interest Total
2005 20-3.0 $ 1490 3 2469 § 3,959
2006 2.0-3.0 1,580 2,597 4177
2007 2.0-3.0 1,615 2,556 4171
2008 2.0-3.0 1,660 2,513 4173
2009 2.5-3.0 1,705 2,470 4175
2010-2014 2535 9,285 11,576 20,861
2015-2019 3.25-4.0 10,955 9,910 20,865
2020-2024 3.875-5.0 12,235 7.548 19,783
2025-2029 50 10,500 4,976 15,476
2030-2034 50 13,395 2,074 15,469

Tofals 5 64420 $ 48689 $ 113,109




Businass-type activities:

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum installment purchase paymenis on capital leases for vehicles in the business-type activities with the present value
of the net minimum payments as of December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Year Payable Principal Interest Total
2005 $ 1827 § 86 3 1,923
2006 1,034 41 1,075
2007 602 12 614
2008 73 1 74

Totals 3 3563 § 150 % 3,686

The following is a summary of the County's outstanding business-type aclivities revenue bond issues as of December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Interest Interest Issue Maturity Authorized Oul- Call
Series Rate (%) Dates Date ? Date and Issued Relired slanding Callable Premiums
1997 6.25 4-1 1041 07109/97 10/01/06 $ 42870 $ M35 $ 11585 % -
1999 4.2-5.0 4-1 101 05/01/99 10/01/28 96,345 - 96,345 92,955 0-1%
2000 4.5-5.625 41 101 11/01/00 10/01/35 214,525 4,045 210,480 195,600 0-1%
2003 2.5-5.0 4-1 101 11/18/03 10/01/35 179,865 430 179,435 145,875 None
Tolals $ 533605 $ 35790 § 497815 § 434430

The various bond indentures contain significant limilations and restrictions on annual debt service requirements, maintenance of and flow of monies through various
restricted accounts, minimum amounts to be maintained in various sinking funds, and minimum revenue bond coverages. As of year-end, the County believes it was in
compliance with all such significant limitations and restrictions.

The following is a summary of the County's outslanding business-type activities revenue bonds debt service requirements o maturity as of year-end (in thousands of

dollars):
Year
Payable Principal Interest Total
2005 $ 6915 § 25195 § 32,110
2006 7.315 24,797 32,112
2007 5,550 24,375 29,925
2008 8,910 24,160 33,070
2009 9,445 23,802 33,247
2010-2014 53,925 112,302 166,227
2015-2019 68,985 97,254 166,239
2020-2024 88,885 77,552 166,437
2025-2029 108,590 52,400 161,390
2030-2034 112,725 24,938 137,663
2035 26,170 1,364 27,534
Totals $ 497815 $ 488139 § 985954
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9. Employee Benefits

{A) Defined Benefits Pension Plan Description

(8)

The County provides pension benefits for substantially all of ils full-time and permanent part-time emplayees through a single employer defined benefit plan (the "Plan").
The Plan is administered by the DeKalb County Pension Board (the “Board") composed of seven vating members {the Chief Executive Officer of DeKalb Counly, two
members elected by County employees, two members selecied by the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners, one member elected by County retirees, and one
member appoinied by the other voting members of the Board) and two non-voting members (the County Direclor of Finance and the County Meril System Director). The
Plan does not issue separate financial stalements. The County's payrall for employees covered by the Plan for the year was $278,393,000, as compared to a total County
payroll of $294,918,000.

The Plan provides retirement benefits of 2.75% of average salary (based on the highest consecutive 36 manths of pay over the last ten years of employment) times
years of sefvice with a maximum retirement benefit of 82.5% of average salary. Normal retirement, with at least 10 years of service, is at age 55 or older. Early
retirement (subject to reductions in benefils) is allowed at age 50 with 10 or more years of service. Employees with 30 years of service can retire at any age with no
reduction in benefits. An employee can retire at age 65 with three or more years of service.

Termination benelits are as follows. Within the first three years of service, the participant's conlributions will be returned without interest. After three but less than ten
years of service, the parficipant may either withdraw his contributions plus interest or leave his contributions in the Plan and receive a monthly benefit to commence at
age 65 equal lo his accrued benefit as of the date of termination. After ten years of service, the participant may either withdraw his contributions plus interest or leave
his contributions in the Plan and receive a monthly benefil to commence at his normal retirement date equal lo his accrued benefit as of the date of termination. Such
{erminating employee may elect to receive reduced benefils any time after he attains 50 years of age.

Retirement benefits are payable monthly for life (ten years guaranieed) with survivor options available subject to reduced manthly benefits. The Plan also provides
disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by State statute and by the DeKalb Pension Act. Any changes to the Plan benefits
musl be approved by the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners. Contribution levels to the Plan are determined using the acluaria! basis specified by staiute. Current
coniribution levels, as approved by the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners, are employee 0.5% and Counly 0.5% of employee eamings. The accrual basis of
accounting is used to report the activities of the Plan. Plan member contribulions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Benefits and refunds

are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan. Assets are valued at fair value, based on quoled market prices, with actuarial valuations of
investments adjusted to market at a 5 year smoothed rate. As of year end, no investment in any one organization represented 5% or more of plan assets. Administrative
costs of the Plan are financed through investment earnings. As of year end, Plan membership was composed of the following:

Ten year vested active employees covered by the Plan 2,626
Three year vested active employees covered by the Plan 2,542
Nonvested active employees covered by the Plan 2,100
Retirees cumrently receiving normal retirernent benefits 2,055
Retirees cumrently receiving disability benefils 94
Beneficiaries of deceased retirees currently receiving benefits 223
Terminated employees entitied to benefits but not yel receiving them because of age 285

Total members 9,935

Actuarial assumptions

The actuarial accrued iability was compuled as part of an aciuarial valuation performed as of April 1, 2004. Significant actuarial assumplions used in the valuation
include: (a) rate of return on invesiment of present and future assels of 8.0% per year compounded annually, {b} projecied salary increases of 3.5% for inflation and 0% o
4.3% for merit / seniority based on an age-graduated scale, compounded annually, {c) no postretirement benefit increases were assumed.



(C) Actuarially Determined Pension Plan Contribution Requirements and Contribution Made

The Plan's funding policy provides for actuarially determined confributions at rates that, for individual employees, are a level percentage of payroll. The contribution

rate for normal cost is determined using the projected unit credit cost melhod. The required contribution includes the normal cost less amortization of the assels in excess
of the actuarial accrued liability. Amortization is taken as a level percentage of payroll over 0.25 to 30 years for various bases. The significant actuarial assumplions

used to compute the acluarially determined contribution requirement are the same as those used to compute the acluarial accrued liability as described above. The total
conlributions to the Plan for the year of $2,642,000 were made in accordance with actuarially determined requirements computed through an acluarial valuation
performed April 1, 2003. Employer conlributions of $1,320,000 represent 8% of the employer annual required contribution. The net pension obligation of $12,334,738

was determined in accordance with GASB Slalement No. 27. The amortizalion period for the County’s actuarial accrued surplus is open,

* (D) Schedule of Contributions as a percentage of salary

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
Employee 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% .5% 5% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
Employer 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% .5-3.25% 3.25% 10.00%

{E} Unaudited Schedule of Funding Progress (in thousands of dollars where applicabla):

Valualion Dale

4-1-2004 4-1-2003 4-1-2002 4-1-2001 4-1-2000 4-1-1999 4-1-1998

Actuarial value of plan assets $ 1137597 $1,122066 § 1,161,884 $1002973 $ 935071 § 922548 § B61,814
Actuarial accrued liability $ 1038214 § 983393 § 078606 §$ 851877 $ 790994 $§ 726,771 § 593,931
Percentage funded 109.57% 114.10% 118.73% 117.74% 125.80% 126.94% 145.10%
Assets in excess of actuarial accrued liability $ 99383 § 138673 § 83278 $ 151,096 $ 204077 $ 195777 § 267,883
Annual covered payroll § 261248 $ 254259 § 249746 § 206419 § 196590 § 194410 § 181,342
Assets in excess of actuarial accrued liability

as a % of annual covered payroll 38.04% 54.54% 73.39% 73.20% 103.81% 100.70% 147.72%

(F} Unaudited Schedule of Employer Contributions (in thousands of dollars where applicable):
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Annual required contribution / annual pension cost $ 16624 § 6,270 § 13,800 § 1253 &% 1140 3 1070 & 1,007
Annual employer contributions made $ 1320 § 1288 § 1,302 § 1253 & 1140 § 1,070 § 1,007
Net pension asset (obligation}, end of year $ (12335 § 3123  § 8434 § - § - 8 - 8§ -
Percenlage of annual employer contributions made to
annual required contributions 7.94% 20.54% 9.43% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

{G) Other Post Retirement Benefits

Group health benefits are available 1o all relirees and beneliciaries of retirees with the County paying up to 70% of the total cost and the retiree paying the remaining
amount. These benefits are provided by the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners each year and are nol statutory, contractual, or required by other authority. The total
cost of reliree health benefits, $11,723,000 for the year, is recognized as an expense in the Internal Service Funds as claims are incurred.
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(H) Deferred Compensation Plan

The County offers its employees an optional deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Intemal Revenue Code Seclion 457. The plan is available to all County
employees and permits them lo defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement,

death, or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income

attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are {until paid or made available to the participant or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of a Trust created by
the County for the benefit of the participants and administered by third parties. The County has adopled the provisions of GASB Statement No. 32 which required the removal
of plan assets and liabilities from the financial statements of the County.

Praoprietary Funds
Contracts and agreements
The County has a shared inlerest in various water pollution control plants with the City of Atlanta, Gwinnelt County, Henry County, and Fulton County. Each of these
agreements requires the County lo pay a pro rata share of the plants' operating costs and additional capilal improvements which may be made by the other equity interest.
During the year, the Counly incued the following operating costs {no capital costs were incurred) (in thousands of dollars):
R. M. Clayton Plant - City of Atlanta $ 10,509
Big Creek Plant, John's Creek Flant,
Marsh Creek Plant - Fulton County 1,114
Jackson Creek Plant - Gwinnelt County 364
Total $ 11987
Fung Deficits

The Risk Management Fund (an Intemal Service Fund) ended the year with a net assets deficit of $4,671,000. Risk management charges will be increased in future
years to eliminate this deficit.

Risk Management

The Counly is exposed to various risks of loss related to toris; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors and omissions; law enforcement liability; injuries to
employees; assumed risks for employee benefits; damage lo private parties; and natural disasters. By provision of the State Constitution, the County may be immune from
liability for most forms of bodily injury and property damage arising out of its operations, if such losses are not insured. It is the policy of the County to utilize immunity as a
legal defense agains! liability claims whenever the risk of loss is not insured and immunity may be asserted.

DeKalb County has a Risk Management Fund to account for and to finance its purchase of insurance and coverage of uninsured risks of loss when immunity cannot be
asserled. Under this program, the Risk Management Fund finances two reserves: workers' compensation and incurred but unpaid claims under a self-funded employee
medical benefit program. The County retains the first $500,000 of expense for each occurrence of workers' compensation injuries, and it retains the first $175,000 of medical
expense claims per year for each covered employee under the comprehensive medical insurance plan. Beyond these limits, the County purchases specific excess insurance to
limit further loss. No claim has ever exceeded the excess limits of the workers' compensation or excess medical insurance policies. Reserves are established for the medical
insurance liabilities based on acluarial projection provided by the plan administrator (Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Georgia). Reserves for workers' compensation are
established in two manners: {1) an estimate of future expenses for known claims and known treatment needs, and (2) a stafistical prajection of incurred but unreported claims,
based on recent historical experience of loss development in the County’s claims.



The County purchases commercial automobile liability insurance lo cover its automobile, trucks, and other on-road vehicles. 1t also purchases liability coverage for ils
helicopter fleet and for airport operations. Beyond the limils of the liability policies, the County asserts immunity, and has never had to pay a claim in excess of those policies.

Consequently, no reserve is established for these risk exposures.

Buildings and conlents are insured through an “all risk” property damage insurance policy, and the County retains the first $100,000 of each loss, with no aggregate limils.

This relention level is funded by an annual approprialion of $300,000 which, historically, has proven adequate to cover all claims.

The changes in the liabilities for self-insurance for the last four years are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

2004 2003 2002 2001

Workers' compensation:

Incurred claims, net of any changes $ 5380 § 3493 % 1800 & 2,595

Payments (3.026) (2,887) (2,411) (2,722)

Ending balance 7,633 5,279 4,673 5,284
Health and dental:

Incurred claims, net of any changes 53,631 46,552 39,828 38,420

Paymenls {53,803) (45,461) (38,484) {38,215)

Ending balance 4,841 5.013 3,822 2,578
Total liabikity for self insurance $ 12474 $ 10,202  § 8595 § 7.862

13. Interfund Balances and Activity
(A) Balances Due To/From Other Funds
Balances due to / from other funds at year end consist of the following (in thousands of dollars):

$ 6,981 Due io the General Fund from other governmental funds representing short-term loans.
1,616 Due to the General Fund from the General Employee's Pension fund representing a short-term loan.

1,423 Due to the Special Tax District Designated Services Fund from the Special Tax District Unincorporated Fund representing a shori-term loan.

$ 10,020 Total
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(B) Transfers to / from Other Funds

Transfers to / from other funds for the year consist of the following:

$ 1,227 Transfer from General Fund to other governmental funds lo match federal and stale grants.
22,432 Transfer from General Fund 1o other governmental funds for capital projects.
80 Transfer from General Fund to other governmental funds to fund programs.
2,119 Transfer from Special Tax District Designaled Services Fund to other governmental funds to match federal and state grants.
82,688 Transfer from Special Tax District Unincorporated Fund to Special Tax Disirict Designated Services Fund to fund operations.
189 Transfer from Special Tax District Unincorporated Fund lo other governmental funds for capital projects.
9,072 Transfer from other govemmental funds to General Fund to fund programs.
125 Transfer from other governmental funds of unspent grant and projects monies to General Fund.
1,497 Transfer from other governmental funds of unspent grant and projects monies lo Special Tax District Designaled Services Fund.
2,023 Transfers between other govemmental funds for capital projects.
137 Transfers between other governmental funds of unspent capital projects monies.
39 Transfers between other governmental funds to match federal and state grants.
250 Transfer from other enterprise funds to Water and Sewerage System Fund for capilal projects.
625 Transfer from other enterprise funds to other govemmental funds to fund programs.
70 Transfer from internal service funds to other govemmental funds for capital projects.
EXFPETEN

14. Commitments And Contingencies

The County Board of Commissioners voted during fiscal year 2003 to approve giving 95% of the hotel / mole! tax received by the County {o the DeKalb County Convention and
Visitors Bureau and 5% to the DeKalb Council for the Arts. During the year, the County paid $1,948,000 and $103,000 respectively, on these agreements.

Litigation - The County is defendant in various legal actions in the nature of claims for alleged damages to persons and property, civil rights viclations, zoning matters, and
other similar types of actions arising in the course of normal Counly operations. 1n the apinion of the County's management and legal counsel there are no suits pending or
unasserted claims that would have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the County.
Grant Contingencies - The County has received federal and stale grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor
cannot be determined at this time although the County’s management expecls such amounts, if any, will nol be significant.

15. Budget Information

The County exceeded the legal level of budgeted expenditures in the following departments (in thousands of dollars}.

Fund Department Amount
General Juvenile Court $ 48
Special Revenue - Streetlights Public works transporiation 4
Special Revenue - Grant-in-Aid Finance 9
Special Revenue - Grant-in-Aid Workforce development 400
Special Revenue - Grant-in-Aid District Attorney 3
Debt Service - Other General Obligation Bonds Debt Service 147

These overages were caused by unexpecled expendilures in these funds during 2004. The budgets for these departments in 2005 are expected to be sufficient to cover
expenditures.



As mandated by Georgia law, the County maintains a project-length balanced budget for each capital projects fund. The following is a summary of each of these funds
project-length budgets (in thousands of dollars):

1987 Health HOST Community 2001
Parks Jail Facilities COPS Morgue Capital Greenspace Parks
Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Project Projects Program Bonds
Project-length revenues:
Budget $ 21 0§ 2389 § 760 § 33982 5 38 % 107,394 § 4300 § 115825
Actual 203 2,408 762 34,226 318 83,618 4,327 115,126
Project-length expenditures:
Budget 201 2,389 760 33,982 318 107,394 4,300 115,825
Actual 47 182 600 - 21,690 317 71,564 4,293 51,320

Building Public Safety

Capital Authority Judicial
Improvement Juvenile Facilities
Projects Court Project Authority Tolal
Project-length revenues:
Budgel $ 121506 § 15158 § 50,095 § 451928
Actual 82,883 14,116 50,384 388,371
Project-fength expenditures:
Budget 121,506 15,158 50,095 451,928
Actual 61,453 10,587 20,450 242,503
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16. Fund Balance Reservas

Reserved fund balances in the various funds are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Special Tax
District - Special Tax Other Tolal
Designated District - Governmental Governmenlal
General Services  Unincorporated Funds Funds
Reserved for encumbrances $ 1,557 § 902 § 10 § 21747 § 24,216
Reserved for invenlories 51 - - 5 - 51
Total reserved $ 1,608 $ 902 $ 10 $ 21,747 S 24,267

47. Subsequent Event

The DeKalb County Board of Commissioners voted in early 2005 to increase the County's pension contributions and employee's pension conltributions based
on the following scheduled percentages of payroil:

Employee Employer
Year Contribution  Conlribution
2005 1.5% 3.0%
2006 2.5% 4.0%
2007 3.0% 5.5%
2008 3.5% 7.0%

These increases should eliminate the net pension obligation shown in Footnote 9F.
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenls

Taxes receivable (net)

Accounts receivable {nef}

Due from other governments
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable
Other accrued liabilities

Advance paymenis and deposits
Due to other govemments
Due fo other funds
Due to others
Deferred revenue
Total kabilities
Fund balances:
Reserved
Unreserved
Total furid balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

Special Drebt Capilal Total Nonmaijor
Revenue Service Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds

17,999 S 12,892 150,806 s 181,797

5,996 911 - 6,907

1,719 - - 1,719

6,858 - 6,858
32,572 13,803 150,906 197@1_

4,072 - 4,962 9,034

2,086 - 2,096

477 - - 477

381 * - 381

6,981 - - 6,981

330 - - 330

1,392 617 76 2,085

15,729 617 5,038 21,384

210 - 21,537 21,747

16,633 13,186 124,331 154,150

16,843 13,186 145,868 175.897

32,572 $ 13.803 150,906 3 197.281
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DeKalb County. Georgia
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
{in thousands of doltars)

Special Debt Capltal Tota! Nonmajor
Revenue Service Project Govemmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds
REVENLUIES
Taxes $ 68,751 $ 27,367 H - $ 96,118
Licenses and penmits 8,535 - - 8,535
Use of money and property 215 459 1,350 2,024
Intergovernmenial 29,696 - 601 30,297
Fines and forfeitures 2,793 . - 2,793
Charges for services 15,577 - - 15,577
Miscellaneous 1.139 - 949 2,088
Total revenues 126,706 27.826 2,900 157,432
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 6,128 - 6,128
Public safety 59,194 - - 59,194
Civil and criminal court system 2,067 - - 2,067
Public works 13,720 - - 13,720
Community development 12,929 - - 12,929
Parks and recreation 1,765 . - 1,765
Health and welfare 23,236 - - 23,336
Miscellaneous 2,834 - - 2,834
Debl service - 26,140 1,207 27,347
Bond issuance costs - - 237 237
Capital oullay:
General government - - 14,410 14410
Public safety . - 21,354 21,354
Civil and criminal court system - - 5,760 5,760
Public works - . 31,665 31,665
Community development - - 30 30
Library - - 225 225
Parks and recreation - - 27,926 27,926
Heaith and welfare . - 126 126
Other - - 21 21
Total expenditures 121,973 26,140 102,961 251,074
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 4,733 1.686 {100,061} {93,642)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Proceeds of bond issuance - - 50,000 50,000
Premium on bond issuance - - 579 579
Contractual purchase obligations 514 - 2,864 3,378
Transfers in 3,527 - 25414 258,941
Transfers out {10,153} - {2,740} {12,893}
Tolal other financing sources {(uses) (6.112) - 76,117 70.005
Net change in fund balance (1,379) 1,686 (23,944) (23,637)
Fund balance - beginning 18,222 11,500 169,812 199,534
Fund balance - ending $ 16,843 5 13,186 5 145,868 $ 175,897
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources {other than irusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditure for specified purposes.
The following Monmajor Special Revenue Funds are used by ihe County:
Development Fund - 1o account for operations of the County's development deparimeni, whose financing is provided by license and permit fees.
Child Support Incentive Fund - to account for monies collected from the State lo be used by the District Atlomey for programs relaling lo child support.
PEG Supporl Fund - to account for monies collected from cable companies fo provide infrastructure for government access channels.
County Jail Fund - to account for monies collecled as a result of a 10% penally on certain court cases, which are used for the construction, operation, and staffing of
County detention faciliies,
Victim Assistance Fund - 1o account for fines assessed in Slate and Superior Courts in DeKalb County which are used for viclim assislance programs.
Recreation Fund - to account for the operalions of various recrealional aclivilies provided by the County whose financing is through user fees.
Juvenile Services Fund - to account for monies collected under Georgia 1aw for probation services to juvenile offenders which are used for providing
{reatment to juvenile offenders.
Drug Abuse Treatment and Education Fund - fo account for monies collected under Georgia law related 1o additional penallies on conlrolied substances olfenses
which are used for drug abuse treatment and education programs relating to controlled substances and marijuana.
Law Enforcement Confiscated Monies Fund - to account for monies confiscaled under Georgia law by DeKalb law enforcement officers relaled to controlled
substances offenses which are used 1o defray the cost of complex investigations and to purchase equipment relaling to said investigations.
Sireet Lights Fund - to account for streel light assessments on County residents and businesses which are used for providing street light services for the
County’s citizens.
Speed Humps Fund - to account for speed hump assessments on County residents which are used for providing speed hump services for the Counly's cilizens.
Emergency Telephane System Fund - to account for monies collected under Georgia law by the telephone company on behalf of DeKalb County which are
used for providing emergency 911 services to residents of the County.
Grant-in-Aid Fund - to account for operalions of various grant-in-aid programs. Financing is provided by contributions from various govemmenial agencies. Such
contributions are used only to finance expendilures permilled by the various grant-in-aid conlracts and agreemenls.
2000 Local Law Enforcement Block Granl Fund - to account for year 2000 local law enforcement block grant monies which are used to support law enforcement in the County.
2001 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund - to account for year 2001 local law enforcement block grant monies which are used to support law enforcemenl in the County.
2002 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund - 1o account for year 2002 local law enforcement block grant monies which are used lo support law enforcement in the Counly.
2003 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund - 1o account for year 2003 local law enforcement block grant monies which are used to suppor law enforcement in the Counly.
2004 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund - to account for year 2004 local law enforcement block grant monies which are used to support law enforcement in the County.
Fire Fund - to account for operations of the County's fire depariment whose financing Is provided by a specific annual property tax levy. Such property taxes are
used to provide fire pratection for all residents of the County not protected by municipal fire departments.
Hosgpital Fund - to account for contraciual payments made by the Counly to the Fulton DeKalb Hospital Authority whose financing is provided by a specific annual
property tax levy.
Hotel/Motel Tax Fund - to account for taxes collected by holels and molels within the County which are used for the promotion of lourism and convenlion irade within
the County.
Law Library - 1o account for fees recelved from State and Superior Courts and used lo finance the Law Library's operation and purchase of reference malerials.
Alternative Dispute Resolution - to accounl for fees received from Stale, Magistrate, Probate, and Superior Cours and used (o fund dispute resolulion matiers.

F53



DeKaib County, Georgia
Nonmajor Special Reverue Funds

Coenbining Balance Shaet

December 3, 2004

{in lhousands of doltars)
Law
Drug Abuse Erdoroament Emergency
PEG Victien Juvende T t o d Strest Speed Telephone
Development Suppon Assi Recreation Services & Education Manies Lights Husmps System Grant-n-Aid
ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalenis 3 551 1 1.788 H 568 $ 212 5 18 $ 123 $ 3438 3 67 433 $ rain 3 -
‘Taxes receivabie (naf} - . = . - 5 - A = % c
Accounts receivable (nel) 5%4 - - = - - - 175 - 900 =
Due from other o /| - - - - - - - - - - 6,858
Tolal assels 1,065 1,768 588 212 16 123 3,434 242 433 8.710 6.0858
LLARELITIES ARO FUND BALANCE
Liabiities:
AL and payabk 550 205 83 106 - i 1.002 = 2 - aro
Other sccrued Rabilities 242 E - 1 - - . 3 - - 562
pay and dep - 3 - . - i ar? - + - .
Bue to other funds E - . . - - - - t » 5339
Due 1o others . - - . o 27 5 : . g
Due 1o other govemmants - - - - - &5 - - = o e
Deferred revenoa = = - - - - = - - = - a7
Tolal Eabiities 792 205 83 17 - 111 1,606 3 2 - 6.858
Fund balances:
Reserved 4 - - 4 1 - 68 - . 2 -
Unreservad 263 1.583 505 91 15 12 1,564 23% 431 8,708 -
Total tund balances 273 1.583 505 G5 18 12 3,632 233 431 8,710 -
Total kabilities anc fund balances $ 1,085 3 1,788 ] 588 3 212 $ 16 3 123 $ 3438 $ 242 5 4313 $ 8,710 3 6,058




ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalants

Taxes receivabla (nel)

Accounis receivable (net)

Due from other govermnments
Tolal assats

LIABILIMES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabiitins:
AL and bk

Other accrued kabifties
e nts and depos

Dus to other funds
Due to cthers
Due 1o cther governments

Total Kabéites
Fund balances:
Reserved
Unreserved
Total fund balances
Total kabildies and fund balances

DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Combining Balanca Sheet

December 31, 2004

(in thousands of dolars)
{continued)
Tota!
Nonmajor
2001 Local Law 2002 Local Law 2003 LocalLaw 2004 Local Law Alemative Special
Enforcement End Ent Enforcement Hotel v Law Dispule Revenve
Block Grat  _BlockGramt  __ Block Grant Block Grant Fire Hospital Mol Tax Library Resolt Funds
3 1 $ 34 3 268 s 188 s 972 $ = 209 $ 155 $ 1,146 5 17999
. . - - 4,080 1,744 172 - - 5,998
=, - . . [:x] = - 5 42 1,719
- - - - - - = o - 8.858
1 34 268 188 5,115 1,744 381 180 1,188 32,572
- . 118 - 1.024 - - - - 4,072
- - . - 1278 - . N - 2,096
. ) . - - - . 2 . AT7
. - - - - 1,065 . - st 6,961
F i i - . . " 3 - 130
. . - - . . am = - 381
5 . ; - (o5 420 Z 5 S 1.302
- - 119 - 3.167 1,485 81 3 577 15,720
- - - E 131 = = = . 210
1 U 149 188 1,817 258 = 157 &1 16.633
1 34 149 188 1,948 25% - 157 811 16,843
3 \J $ M 3 268 3 188 3 5.135 $ 1,744 381 $ 160 3 1.168 $ 32,572
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BEVEMAUES

Taxes

Licanses and permils

Use of money and property
intergovermnmental

Fines and {orfeitures
Charges for services
Miscallaneous

Total revenies

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General govemnment
Public safety
Crvil end criminal cour system
Pubkc works
Community development
Parks and recreation
Haalth and wellare
Miscellaneous
Total expendihnes

Excass (deficiency) of revenues
aver tmd'er) expenditures

DTHER FIMANCING SCURCES (USES)

c J purchase obég
Teansiers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

DeXalt County, Georpia

F56

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
c S of R Expandituras, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
{in thousands of doftars)
Law
Chid Drug Abuse Erdorcatment Emengency
Support PEG County Victirn Juvenile Te Street Speed Tatephona
Deaveloprmant Incantive Support Jail Assistanca Recraation Services & Education Monies Lighis . Humgs System
. - $ - H : s - s - = $ - - - 3 - $ -
8,535 5 = 5 ’ . 5 " = 5 -
23 = 19 - 4] - 0 25 3 3 21
- - 108 116 - - - 1,201 - - -
- - - 1,748 878 - - 67 - = - -
42 - . - - 1,076 75 = - 3,209 m 10,850
00 - 123 - - 13 - B 2 - = -
8.690 - 1511" 1.856 1.094 1.095 75 67 1,318 3.212 204 10.541
. 5 87 - . . = - . o . .
. F W . . - . - 1,338 . . 3516
- - - - 254 - 95 - m - - -
10,477 = - - - . - . . 3.23% 4 .
i 5 i - 5 A £ ] - z = &
B g 5 . z - o 20 - - 5 .
10.477 = 367 = 254 1,363 95 156 1,507 3,239 4 2518
{1,767} - 225) 1,856 840 (268} (200 _ {Em {1891 {27 200 7.425
514 - - - - & - - ® . - 4
5 5 i 5 5 . - a8 - % - 5
= 5) - {1.863) {858} = - - {13} = = (8,317)
514 {51 - {1.663} (B58) = = &1 {13) = - (8,217)
{1.273} 5} (225) ™ {18} (268) (20} & {202) zn 200 1,108
1,546 S5 1.808 7 523 363 5 20 1.834 268 21 7.602
273 - 3 9.583 3 - $ 505 s 95 18 3 12 1.?;- 239 5 431 i 8,710

{continued)




Taxes
Licenses and permits.
Usa of maney and property
Intergovermnmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Miscallzneous

Total revenues

XPENI R

Parks and recreation
Heath and weifars
Miscellanaous.
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expendiures

Translers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources {uses)
Net change in fund balanca
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balanca - ending

DeXat County, Georgia
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Slal tof R

For the Year Ended Decamber 31, 2004

Expendrtures, and Changes in Fund Balance

{in thousands of dollars)
(continued)
Total
Nonmajor
2000 Local Law 2001 Local Law 2002 Local Law 2003 Locallaw 2004 Local Law Aflemalive Special
Enf W Er 4 Ent Ent Ent t Hotsl | Dispute Reveru
Grantin-Aid Block Grant_ Block Grant Block Grant Block Grant Block Graml__ Fire Hospital Molal Tax Resotul Funds

s - s - s -8 N - s -8 asge 20676 2,083 - s - 8§ 68751
- - - . 5 . - - - - S 8,535

. R . 5 a4 . » 5 . 2 12 215
24,499 5 5 . 5 188 2,467 1027 5 5 . 29,69
5 5 5 : . . - - . S 5 2703

5 5 . B 5 - 124 % s . - 15,577

58 S g S 5 5 148 s s a1 594 1,139
24,567 . 5 5 4 188 48753 21.703 2,083 83 608 126,708
3,678 5 . 5 5 5 S - 2,083 . 5 6,128
6,106 5 34 161 258 g 47,083 - 5 - - 59,194
1.547 5 5 5 5 g g 3 5 5 5 2,067

- - . 5 5 g g 5 5 5 . 13,720
12,929 . g 5 5 = - - . . g 12,4929
402 5 s 5 5 . 5 5 5 - - 1,765
1622 5 5 5 s 5 5 21,648 5 5 - 23,336
2,037 1 s 5 5 5 - . S 94 612 2.834
28,921 1 34 161 as8 s 47.082 21,648 2,083 o4 812 121,973
{4.334) (1} (34 (156) {354 188 1,670 55 s (t1) {5} 4733
- - . e e 5 5 5 g g 5 514

3371 5 5 13 5 5 62 s . 5 5 a5
(1.044) {35) {5) . . . (13) . . 5 S {10,153
22327 (35) (5) 13 S 5 49 5 s 5 S {8.112)
(2,007} {36) (39) (143) (354) 188 1,719 55 5 o (6} (1.379)
2,007 36 40 177 503 s 229 204 . 168 617 18,222
5 -8 S 1 s M s 149 3 188§ 1,948 250 . 157§ 611§ 16843
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F58
Dekalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgel and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Non-GAAP Budgel Basis (in thousands of dollars)

Development _Child Suppot Incenlive PEG Support
Actual Variance wilh Aciual Varance wilh Actual Variance with
Final Amounts Final Budget Final Amounts Final Budget Final Amomts Final Budgel
Budgeted {Budgetary Over Budgeled {Budgetary Over Budgeted {Budgelary Over
Amounls Basis) {Under) Amomts Basis) {Linder} Amounts Basis} {Under)
Revenues:
Licenses and penmils ] 10,235 $ 85 s (1,700} $ - H - H - H - H - s -
Intergovermmentsl - - - = - E =. 1 1
Charges lor services - 42 42 - - - - -
Invesimen! income 42 26 {16) - . = - 21 A
Miscellaneous 13 20 ki - - - 135 122 {13}
Total revenues 10,250 9.693 (1,597} = - = 135 144 g
Expendilurgs:
Cument.
General govemment - - - . - - 1,762 162 (1.600)
Civil and criminal court system - district attomey - - - 5 - {5) - - -
Public works - development 11,799 9,359 {2,440} - - = - - -
Total expendilures 11,799 9,359 {2.440) 5 - {5 1.762 162 {1,600}
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (1.509) (666) 842 {5} - 5 {1.627) (18) 1,609
Other financing sources {(uses):
Transiers out - - - = {5) (5) - - -
Excess {deficiency} of revenues and other sources
over expendilures and other uses (1,509) {666) 843 {5) {5} - {(1.627) {18) 1,609
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,509 1,509 - 5 5 - 1,627 1,627 -
Fund balance, end of year $ - 3 §43 3 B4J 3 - $ - ] - 5 - $ 1,609 $ 1,609

Expianalion of differences between budgel and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures
and olher uses - budget basis (666) 15 {18)
Differencas - budget to GAAP:
Due to ravenues.

Accrued receivables 12-31-2003 {3 - {2)
Due 10 expenditures;
Accrued payables 12-31-2003 T41 -
Accrued payables 12-31-2004 {570} - (26)
Encumbrances 12-31-2003 {715) - {179)
Net change In fund balance - GAAF basis $ !1;273t $ 55! $ ’2251

{continued)



DeKalb County, Georgia
Nommajor Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures, and Changes in Fund Batance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in ihousands of dofars)

{continued)
County Jail . Victim Assistance Recreation
Actual Variance with Actual Variance with Actual Varlance with
. Final Amounts Final Budget Fina! Amounts Final Budgel Final Amounts Final Budgel
Budgeted {Budgetary Over Budgeted (Budgetary Over Budgeled {Budgetary Over
Arounts Basis) {Under} Amounts Basis) {Under) Amounts Basis) {Under)
Revenues:
Intergovemmental $ a0 s 108 H 18 3 150 H 116 H {34) s - $ - s -
Charges for services - - - - - - 1,334 1076 {258)
Fines and jodeitures 1,650 1,748 58 800 g78 178 - - -
Investment income - - - - - - - 8 8
Miscellaneous - - - - - - - 13 13
Total revenues 1,780 1,856 76 950 1,094 144 1,334 1,095 {239)
Expenditures;
Curent:
Civil and criminal court sysiem - district atiorney - - - 585 151 {444) - - -
Parks and recreation - - - - - - 1.840 1.234 (406)
Total expendilures - - - 585 151 (444) 1,640 1,234 {406)
Excass (deficiency) of revenues over expendifures. 1,780 1,858 6 55 843 588 (308) (139) 1687
Qlher financing sources (uses):
Transfers out {1,787) {1.863) {76) {B858) (858) - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over expendiiures and other uses @ - M - - (503) - a5 - 588 (206} - (1239) - 167
Fund balance, beginning of year 7 7 - 503 503 - 306 308 -
Fund balance, end of year $ - S - 3 - 5 - 3 588 $ 59_3_ $ - 5 167 3 167
Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expendilnes
and other uses - budgel basis @ 85 {139}
Differences - budgel lo GAAP;
Due lo revenues:
Due to expenditunes: :
Accrued payables 12.31-2003 - - 14
Accrued payables 12-31-2004 - {83) {72}
Encumbrances 12-31-2003 - {20) [ta))
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis 3 ;;! 3 {38) 3 (268}

{continued) F59



DeKalb County, Georpia
Nonmajor Special Revenus Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Satance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Non-GAAP Budgel Basis {in theusands of dotars)

{continued)
Juvenile Sefvices Drug Abuse Treatmeni & Education Law Enforcement Confiscated Monies
Actual Variance with Actual Variance with Actual Varance with
Final Amounts Final Budget Finsl Amounts Final Budget Firsal Amounts Final Budgel
Budgeted {Budgetary Qver Budgeted (Budgetary Over Budgeted {Budgetary Over
Amounts Basis! {Under) Amounls Basis) Under, Amounts Basis) {Under)
Reverwes:
Intergovemmental $ - $ - $ - - - H - s - 5 1413 H .41 § [iFri]
Charges for services 60 75 15 - - . - -
Fines and loreilures - - - 62 67 5 - - .
Invesiment income - - - 1 - m - 29 29
Misceflaneous * - - - - - 2 2
Total reveries &0 75 15 63 67 4 1413 1,322 a1}
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety - police - - - - . . 2,007 ki {1,980)
Civil and criminal coun system - sheriff - - - - - - 242 125 {117
Civil and crimingl courl sysiem - juvenile courl 98 85 [4}] = - . - - -
Civil and criminal court sysiem - district attormey - - = - - - 314 "7 {197)
Health and welfare - - - 163 65 {98) - . .
Total expendilures 98 95 {1} 163 65 {98) 2,583 269 {2.294)
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures {36) {20} 16 (100) 2 102 (1,150) 1,053 2,203
Other fnancing sources (uses):
Transters in - - - 20 81 1 - - -
Transfers out : - - - = - - (13} {13
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sowrces
over expenditures and other uses (36) - (20} - 16 20y - B3} - 103 {1,150) - 1,040 - 2,190
Fund balance, beginning of year 38 36 - 20 20 - 1.150 1.150 -
Fund balance, end of year $ - 1 168 3 18 3 - 3 103 $ 103 5 = 5 2,190 S 2.190
Explanation of dif between budgei and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures
and other uses - ukigel basis (20) k] 1,040
Differences - budget 1o GAAP:
Due lo revenues:
Actrued receivables 12-31-2003 . . 5)
Bue 1o expenditures:
Accrued payables 12-31-2003 - . 200
Accrued payables 12-31-2004 . {81) (558)
Encumbrances 12-31-2003 . - 1879)
Nel change in fund balarce - GAAP basis 3 (20} ] {8} $ {202}

{continued)



Revenues:
Charges for services
Invesiment income
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Publkic safety
Public works - transportation
Public works - oads and drainage
Tolal expenditres
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendiures
Other financing souwces (uses):
Transfers out
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over expenditures and other uses
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Explanalion of differences between budgel and GAAP;
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expendilures
and other uses - budget basis
Differences - budgel lo GAAP:
Due to reventes:
Accrued receivables 12-31-2003
Accrued recelvables 12.31-2004
Due to expenditures:
Accrued payables 12-31-2003
Accrued payables 12-31-2004
Encumbrances 12-31-2003
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

DekKalb County, Georgia

Neoamajor Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgel and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Non-GAAP Budget Basis {in thousands of dollars)

{continued)
Street Lights ___Gpeed Humps Ememency Telephone System
Actual Variance with Actual Variance with Actual Variance wilh
Final Amounts Final Budget Final Amoumts Final Budget Final Amounis Finat Budgel
Budgeled {Budgetary Over Budgeted {Budgetary COver Budgeted {Budgetary Over
Amounts Basis) {Unden) Amounis Basis) {Under) Amounts Basis) {Undet)

3,120 H 3,190 - 10 s 150 $ 206 £ 56 $ 11,038 H 10,800 H (236)

1 2 1 1 3 2 80 88 38
kR il 3,192 71 151 209 58 11,086 10,628 {188)
- - 5 - - - 11.2H 3423 (7.778)

3204 3238 4 - - - 5 5 -

- - - 7 2 {375) - - -
3.234 3.238 4 77 2 (375) 11,201 3423 {7.778)

(113) [46) 87 {226) 207 433 {105) 7.475 7.580

- - - - - - (5.548) {8.017) 23

{113) - {48) - 87 {226) - 207 - 433 (6,853) - 1,158 7811

113 113 - 226 228 - 6,853 6,653 -

- H 67 3 67 $ - H 433 $ 433 $ - H 7.811 3 7,811

{46} 207 1,158
(155} (5} {B57)
175 - 800
2 - =
@3 (2) 0
— = -}
S @ 3™ 3o
(continued)
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DeKak County, Geomgpa

Nonmapr Specizl Revenue Funds

Schedule of R , Expends and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgel and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in lhousands of dodtars)

{continued}
Grantin-Aid ..2000 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 200t Local Law Enforcoment Block Graml
Aclual Variance with Aclual Vananca with Actual Variance with
Final Amouniy Final Budgel Fina! Amounls Final Budge| Final Amounts Final Budgel
Budgated (Budgetary Over Budgeled {Budgalary Over Budgeted {Budgetary Over
Amounts Bans) —[Under) Amounis Basin} {Under) Amounls Basis) {Under}
Revenues.
Intergovammental s 50,901 $ 20,120 H {30.851) s - $ - 3 E $ - 3 . ] -
Miscellaneous 195 B {107} - - - - - -
Total revenues 51,176 20208 _{30,968) - - - - = -
Expenditures:
Cumrent:
General govemmant:
Finznca - L] 9 - - = - - -
Worklorce development 3,258 3656 400 - - - - - =
Total general govemmant 3,256 3685 409 - - = - s -
Public salety:
Police 0,878 6,305 {3.571) 36 ] 3%) 35 34 [4}]
Fire and rescus services 1620 210 {8410 L - =H S - o
Total pubbc safety 11,49 6,515 {4,981} 36 1 35) a5 3 {1}
Chvil and criminal court syslem:
Sherif] 332 327 (5 - . - - - -
Juvenita counl 1,435 580 (856) L - . - - :
Superior court 626 154 {432) - - = - . -
Stale court 1 1 - - - - * - -
Solicitor 265 383 82) . - - - . -
Dislrict attomey 182 185 3 - - - = - -
Magistrale cout 17 111 {6) - - - - s =
Total crvil and crimenal court system 2,959 1,581 {1.378) : - hd = s -
Public works - development [] - {88) - - > - = .
Community development 25 055 12,651 {12,394) - - - - B -
Parks and recraation 1,355 402 (953) - - - - - -
Heslth and weifare:
Public heatth a2 17 25) - - - 5 . 4
Senicr citizens services. 4112 1,298 (2.614) - - = - - -
Famddy snd childsen servicas 1,820 1,620 200y - = - - - -
Tota) health and wellare 5974 . 2935 {3,039) - = - = - -
Miscedanecy 3,958 466 £3,493) = = - - - -
. Total expendilures 54,142 20225 _ (25,937) % 1 (35} as 34 )
Excess (deficency) of ravenues
over axpandituras {2,966) {8.0%7y £5.051) {36} mn » (35) (34) 1
Other financing sources (uses).
Tranalers in 3174 3an 197 - - - = - -
Tranylers out . {1,044) 11,044} . 35) 34, 5 5 .
Excess (deficiency) of revenuves and other
sourcas aver expendiures and othar uses
over axpsnditures and other uses 208 {5.690) 5,898} [36) {38) - {40} [EL)] 1
Fund blance, beginning of year (208) 208y . 3% 36 - 40 40_ .
Fund balance, end of yasr 3 - 3 15898 3 {5 B98) E - $ - 3 - $ - 3 1 3 1
Exp ion of Gl budgel and GAAP:
Defici of and ather over exp
and other uses - budgel basis (5.690) (36) {39}
Differences - budgel to GAAP:
Due to revenues
Accrued recetvables 12-31-2003 {2,479) - .
Accrued recarvables 12-:31-2004 6.858 - -
Due 10 expendiures:
Accrued paysbles 12-31-2003 264 - -
Accroed payables 12-31-2004 [t - =
Nei changs in fund balance - GAAP basis 3 EDDH $ E; 3 39

{continued)



Revenuas:

Property taxes

Sales laxes

Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Investmenl income

Miscelaneous

Tolal revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

Public salety - police
Pubic safety - fire and rescue services
Tata! expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendiiues
Other financing souwrces {uses):

Transfers in
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources

aver expendiures and other uses
Fund batance, baginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Explanation of differences between budgel and GAAP;
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures
and other uses - budget basis
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due 1o revenues:
Actnued receivables 12-31-2003
Accrued receivables 12-31-2004
Defered revenues 12-31-2003
Delermed revenues 12-31-2004
Due 10 expenditures;
Accrued payables 12-31-2003
Accrued payables 12-31-2004
Encumbrances 12-31-2003
Net changa in fund balance - GAAP basis

DeKalb County, Georpia
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Schedute of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgel and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Non-GAAP Budgel Basis (in thousands of dollars)
{continued)

2002 Local Law Enflorcemeni Block Grant 2003 Local Law Enforcement Block Granl

Actual Vanance with Actual Varance with
Final Amounis Final Budgel Final Amounts Final Budgel
Budgeted (Budgelary Over Budgeted {Budgetary Over
Amounts Basis) {Under) A Basis) {Under)
H - 3 . $ - $ - $
5 5 - 5 5
B 5 5 - 5 5
186 161 {25} 503 240 {283)
186 161 {25} 503 240 {263)
{186) (156) 0 {503) {235) 268
8 13 4 - - -
Qarn - (143) - 34 {503) - {225 - 268
177 177 = 503 503 -
- $ 34 $ 34 3 - $ 268 $ 268
{143) (235)
(119)
$ 143 $ gs«q
{continued)

S_ire

Fire
Actual Variance with
Final Amounts Fina! Budget
Budgeted {Budgetary Over
Amaounts Basis} {Under)
$ 22440 s 30,859 $ {1,581}
14,800 15.146 346
2,106 2468 362
75 - 75)
1 22 21
65 189 124
49,487 48,684 1803}
50,013 45531 (4,482)
50,013 45,531 {4.482)
(528) 3,153 3679
62 62
{464) 3215 3,678
464 464 -
5 - 5 3678 $ 3678
3215
(903)
1.205
575
(885)
844
{2.131)
(319)
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DeKalb County, Geormgia
Nonmaijor Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Aclual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Non-GAAP Budgel Basls (in thousands of dollars)

{continued)
_Haospital Holel \ Motel Tax
Actual Variance with Actual Variance with
Fina} Amounls Final Budgel Final Amounts Final Budgel
Budgeled {Budgelary Over Budgeted (Budgetary Over
Amouns Basis) {linder) Amounts Basis) {Under}
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 14,932 $ 13228 $ {1.704) -1 - $ - H -
Sales taxes 5,500 7463 1,963 - - .
Other laxes - - - 1,850 2,061 m
Intergovernmental 1,174 1,027 (147} - = -
Investmen! income - (28] (28] : = -
Total revenues 21,606 21,689 83 1.950 2,081 111
Expenditures:
Cument:
General govemment . - - 2,149 2,051 {98)
Health and weliars - hospital 21.643 21.619 {24) - - -
Tolal expenditures 21,643 21619 _[24) 2.148 2051 (B8}
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendilures {3n) 70 107 {199) 10 200
Fund balance, beginning of year 7 37 - 189 189 .
Fund balence, end of year $ - s 107 $ - 3 - $ 20; $ -

Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expendilures
and other uses - budgel basis TO 10
Differences - budget lo GAAP:
Due to revenues:

Actreed receivables 12-31-2003 (491) {150

Accrued receivables 12-31-2004 572 172

Defemred revenues 12.31-2003 324 .

Deferred revenues 12-31-2004 {420) -
Due to expenditures:

Accrued payables 12-31-2003 . g

Accrued payables 12-31-2004 : [@381)

Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

!



ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenls
Taxes receivable {nel)

Total assels

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

Deferred revenue

Fund balance

Tolal liabilities and jund balances

REVENUES
Taxes

Use of money and property

Total revenues

EXPENOITURES

Deb! service

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expendilures

Fund balance - beginning

Fund batance - ending

DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
Combining Balance Sheel
December 31, 2004
{in thousands of dollars)

Building 2001 Parks

Authority General Other General Tolal Nonmajor

Revenue Bonds Obligation Bonds Obligation Bonds Debl Service

Debt Service Debt Service Debl Service Funds
$ 4 $ 1.527 s 11,361 $ 12,892
- 407 504 911
4 1,934 11,865 13,803
= 268 349 517
4 1,658 11,518 13,186
3 4 $ 1,934 s 11,865 $ 13,803
DeKa'b County, Georgia
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expendilures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)
Building 2001 Parks

Authority General Other General Total Nonmajor

Revenue Bonds Obligation Bonds Obligation Bonds Debt Service

Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Funds

$ - s 12,862 s 14,505 ) 27,367
387 27 35 459
397 12.889 14,540 27,826
1,079 11,946 13,115 26,140
{682) 943 1,425 1,686
686 723 10,091 11,500
3 4 $ 1,666 3 11,516 $ 13,186




DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

The following Nonmajor Debt Service Funds are used by the County:

Building Authority Revenue Bonds Debt Service Fund - to account for rental and other revenues used to fund the principal and interest
requirements on revenue bonds issued by the Building Authority.

2001 Parks General Obligation Bonds Debt Service Fund - to account for taxes levied to fund the principal and interest requirements
on the 2001 general obligation parks bonds.

Other General Obligation Bonds Debt Service Fund - to account for taxies levied to fund the principal and interest requirements on all

other general obligation bond issues of the County.

FB5



Revenues:
Property laxes
Investmen mxcome
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Debd service
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
aver expendilures
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over axpenditures and cther uses
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Schedute of Revernes, Exgendilures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budpet and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Non-GAAP Budgel Basis (in thousands of doltars)

Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and olher sources over expendilures

and other uses - budgel basis
Differences - budgel Io GAAP:

Due o revenues:
Actrued receivables 12-31-2003
Accrued receivables 12-31-2004
Deferred revenues 12-31.2003
Defemred revenues 12-31-2004

Due lo expenditures:

Debt service paymeri due 12-31-2003
Debt senvice payment due 12-31-2004
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

Buitding Authority Revenue 2001 Parks General Obfigation Olher General Oblgalion
Bonds Debt Service Bonds Debt Service Bonds Debt Service
Actual Vanance with Actual Variznce with Actual Variance with
Final Amounts Final Budget Final Amounts  Final Budget Final Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted {Budgetary Qver Budgeted {Budgetary Over Budgeted {Budgstary Over
Amounis Basis) {Under) _Amounls Basis) {Under) Amounts Basis) {Under}
3 o H - $ . $ 13,569 3 1284 S (728) $ 14240 $ 14520 - 280
5 216 276 55 27 (28) 25 43 18
AN $21 {290} = - = = = =
411 397 {14) 13,624 12,868 {756) 14,265 14,563 258
1,007 1,079 {18) 14,229 11,946 {2,.283) 14,290 14 437 147
{6B6) {662) 4 {605) 922 1,527 125). 126 151
{686) (682) 4 {605) 922 1.527 (25) 126 151
686 686 - 605 605 - 25 25 .
H - $ 4 3 4 S - $ 1527 $ 1527 S - 3 151 $ 151
(682) 922 126
o {289) 146)
- 407 504
- m 285
= (268} (349)
- (9.888)
- - 11,210
5 582 3 943 5 1425
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisilion or construction of major capital facilities for the
County's governmental funds.

The following Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds are used by the County:

1987 Parks Bonds Fund - lo account for the proceeds of the 1987 General Obligation Bond issue and the related capital expenditures for
parks.

Jail Bonds Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 1991 General Obligation Bond issues and the related capital expenditures for a new
County jail.

Heallh Facilities Bonds Fund - lo account for the proceeds of the 1993 General Obligation Bond issue and the related capilal expenditures
for health facilities.

2001 Parks Bonds Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 2001 General Obligation Bond issue and the related capital expenditures for parks.

HOST Capital Projects Fund - lo account for the proceeds from the homesiead sales tax revenues designated for capital projecis.

Capital Improvement Projects Fund - to account for all other monies related to capital expenditures of the County's govermmental funds.

COPS Bond Projects Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 2003 Cerlificate of Participation Bond issue and the related capital
expenditures.

COPS Morgue Project Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 1994 Certificate of Participation Bond issue and the related capital
expenditures for the construclion of a morgue / forensic science center.

Community Greenspace Program Fund - to account for monies donated for green space acquisitions within the County.

Public Safety and Judicial Facilities Authorily Projects Fund - lo account for the proceeds of the 2004 Revenue Bond issue and the related
capilal projects for purchase and renovalion of various buildings for the Public Safety Department.

Building Authority Juvenile Court Project Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 2003 Revenue Bonds and the relaled expenditures for the
construction of a juvenile court facility for the County.



DaKalb County, Gedrpia
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds
Combining Balance Sheel

December 31, 2004

{n thousands of doltars)
Pubbc Safety
Judicial Building
Health HOST Capttal COPS COPS Community Faciies Authority Total Nonmagor
1987 Parks Jai Facikties 2001 Parks Capital Improvement Bord Morgues Greenspace Authority Juvenie Capital Project
—Bonds =~ Bonds Bonds —Bonds _ Projects _ Projects _ Projects = Poject Progmm Projects —ComProject ~ _ Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 158 s 2228 $ 162 $ 64,669 s 12,293 3 24384 $ 12540 S 1 $ M S 29,934 s 4,507 ] 150,906
Total astels 158 ‘:"_ 162 64.6& 12&3_ 24 384 12|540 1 34 29,93_; 4& 15&&
LIASILIMES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabéties:
& 1s and payabk . . - 883 239 2.878 4 - - - 978 4962
Detemed revenue - - - - - 78 - - & = - 76
Tolal kabdities - - - 68683 239 2,854 4 = = - 978 - 5038
Fund balanca:
Reserved - - . 8,146 4428 6,297 1,289 - - 43 234 21,537
Unresarved 158 2,228 162 54,680 1.626 15033 11,247 1 34 25,891 3,295 124,331
Total fund balance 156 2,226 162 63,806 12,054 21430 12,536 1 3 20934 3529 145,868
Tetal kabikties and fund balancas $ 156 3 2.226 $ 162 5 646689 S 12283 S 24384 $ 15.5& $ 1 3 34 $ 2—9& 3 4,507 3 150.906
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DeaKath County. Georgta
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds

Combining 5 of R , E d. . and Ch

ges in Fund Balance

For lhe Year Ended December 31, 2004

{in thousands of dollars)
Pubic Salaty
Judicial Building
Health HOST Capital COPS COPS Community Faciities Autherity Tolal Nonmajor
1987 Parks Jai Facilities 2009 Parks Capital impeovement Bond Morgue Greenspacs Autharity Juvenile Capital Project

Favenumy . Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Propecis __ Progects Projecls Project Frogram Projects Court Project Funds
Use of money and property s 1 s 23 s 2 $ 834 - 228 1 - - 127 $ - $ 27 H - H 50 H 1,350
Intergovermental . - - - - 501 - - - . . 601
Miscellaneous = - - 806 - 143 - = . - - 849

Total revenues 1 23 2 1,700 226 744 127 - 27 - 50 2.900
Expendiures
Debt service . 5 - . 300 a07 o E 3 5 5 1.207
Bond issuance costs B . - - - - B - - 237 - 237
Capital outlay:

General govemmant - - - - . 14,410 - - - - - 14,410

Pubkc safety = - - - . 45 - . - 20,408 . 21,354

Civil and erwminal court system - B8 - - - - n 9 - - 54712 5760

Public works = = - = 13,453 18,207 - . - - - 31,665

Community Development - . - - - o) - - - - - 30

Library System E . - - - 225 . - - - - 225

Parks and recreation : - . 23,953 - 15 . - 3,958 - - 27,926

Haalth and welfare - - 26 - - 100 - - - - - 126

Other = . = = - 21 - - - = = 2

Total axpanditures - a 28 23.953 13,754 34,861 pial g 3,058 20645 5472 102 961
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures 1 15 {24) [22.253} [13,532) {34.117) {144] ] (3.831) [20,845) 5,422 {100,081}
Crihar Financing Seurcey (Ljses}
Proceeds of bond issuancs - - - - - - - - - 50,000 - 50,000
Premium on bond issuance - - - - - - - - . 579 - 579
Cor I p pats - - - - . 2864 - - - - . 2,664
Transfers in - - - . 600 24739 - - 75 - - 25414
Transfers out - - - = {2.216) {524) - = - . - {2.740)

Total other financing sources (uses) = = = - {1,615) 27,079 = - 15 50,579 = 78,117
Nei changs in fund balance i 15 (24) (22.253) {15.148) {7.038) {144) fi)] (3.858) 29,034 (5.422) {23,944)
Fund balance - beginning 155 2.211 186 86,059 27,202 28.468 12.680 10 3,890 - 8,95% 169,812

Fund balance - ending $ 156 3 2.226 - 1652 $ 63 806 S 12.054 $ 21430 S 12536 3 1 $ 34 3 29,934 $ 3529 3 145,863.




DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

The following Nonmajor Enterprise Funds are used by the County:

DeKalb Peachiree Airport Fund - to account for the provision of airport services to the residents of the County. All activities

necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund.

Stormwater Utility Fund - to account for the provision of a Stormwater drainage system for residents of the County. All

activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund.
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable {net)
Due from other governmenis
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (net)
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Other accrued liabilities

Advance payments and deposits
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences payable

Total liabtlities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted
Total net assets

DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmaijor Enterprise Funds
Statement of Net Assets

December 31, 2004

(in thousands of dollars)
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DeKalb-
Peachiree Stormwater
Airport Utility Total
$ 2,949 11,237 14,186
115 745 860
459 - 459
3,523 11,982 15,505
46,439 - 46,439
49,962 11,982 61,944
540 1,072 1612
39 - 39
7 - 7
586 1,072 1,658
94 - 94
680 1,072 1,752
46,439 - 46,439
2,843 10,910 13,753
3 49,282 10,910 60,192




DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assels
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
(In thousands of dollars)

DeKalb-
Peachtree Stormwater
Airport Utility Total
Operaling revenues:

Rentlal fees 3,177 - 3177

Charges for services - 16,693 16,693

Miscellaneous 1 - 1

Total operaling revenues 3,178 16,693 19,871
Operating expenses:

Salaries and employee benefits 1,122 - 1,122

Supplies 212 907 1,119

Operaling services and charges 208 4,131 5,039

Deprecialion and amortization 505 - 505

Total operafing expenses 2,747 5,038 7,785
Operaling income 431 11,655 12,086
Nonoperaling revenues:

Interest income 37 49 86
Income before capital donations and translers 468 11,704 12,172
Capital donations 590 - 590
Transfers out - (875} {875)
Change in net assels 1.058 10,829 11,887
Net assels - beginning 48,224 81 48,305
Nel assets - ending 49,282 10,910 60,192




DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

FT4

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
(tn thousands of dofiars)
DeKalb-
Peachiree Stormwaler
Cash fows from opemting adlivities: Airport Utility Total

Cash received lrom customers 3 3214 H 15,548 s 18,162

Cash payments 1o suppliers for goods and services {895) (4,165) (5.060)

Cash payments lo employees for services {1.117) - {1,117}

Other operating revenues 1 - 1
Net cash provided by operaling aclivilies 1,203 11,783 12,986
Cash fows lrom noncapital financing activities:

Transfers to other funds - {875) (875)
Het cash required by noncapital financing activities - {875) {875)
Cash flows from capital and relaled financing activities:

Acyuisition and construclion of capital assets {1.507) {1.507)

Capital donations 415 - 415
Net cash required by capital and related financing activitles {1.092) - {1,092)
Cash flows hom investing aclivilies:

Interest on investments 39 49 B8
Net cash provided by investing activities a8 49 88
Nel increase in cash and cash equivalenis 150 10,957 11,107
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,799 280 3,079
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,849 11,237 14,186
Reconciliation of operaling income 1o net cash provided by operating activities:

QOperaling income 4 11,655 12,086

Adjustments to reconcile operaling income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 505 - 505
Change in assets and liabilties:
{Increase) decrease in receivables 102 {745) (643)
Increase (decrease) in payables 158 a73 1,031
Increase (decrease) in other liabifities 5 - 5
Increase (decrease) in advance deposils 2 - 2

Net cash provided by operating activiies 1,203 11,783 12,986

Noncash capilal donations S 590 3 - 3 550

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,




DeKalb County, Georgia

Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department to other departments of the County on a
cost reimbursement basis.

The following Internal Service Funds are maintained by the County:

Vehicle Maintenance Fund - to account for operations of the County's Vehicle Maintenance Department which maintains and repairs all of the
County's vehicles.

Vehicle Replacement Fund - to account for all purchases and dispositions of the County's vehicles.

Risk Management Fund - to account for all of the County’s risk management related revenues and expenditures. This includes unemployment
compensation insurance, group health and life insurance, general liability insurance, and worker's compensation insurance.
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories and prepaid items
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets {net)

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Claims and judgments payable, current portion
Obligation under capital leases, current portion
Other accrued liabilities
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Claims and judgments payable, long term portion
Obligation under capital leases, long term portion

Compensated absences payable
Total long-term liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net assets

DeKalb County, Georgia

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Net Assels

December 31, 2004
{In thousands of dollars)

Vehicle Vehicle Risk
Maintenance Replacement Management Total

1,776 5 44 532 $ 8,762 $ 55,070
1,061 - 527 1,588
2,837 44,532 9,289 56,658
1,945 37,668 - 39,613
4,782 82,200 9,289 96,271
899 766 1,486 3,151

- - 8,046 8,046

- 1,827 - 1,827

247 - - 247
1,146 2,593 9,532 13,271
- - 4,428 4,428

- 1,709 - 1,709

569 - - 569
569 1,709 4,428 6,706
1,715 4,302 13,960 19,977
1,945 34,132 - 36,077
1,122 43,766 {4,671) 40,217
3,067 5 77,898 3 (4,671) $ 76,294

—— e
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Intergovemmental
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Supplies
Operating services and charges
Miscellaneous
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating loss
Cther income (expense).
Interest income
Interest expense
Loss on sale of capital assets
Loss before transfers
Transfers out
Change in net assets

Net assets (deficit) - beginning

Net assets (deficit) - ending

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

{In thousands of dollars)

Vehicle Vehicle Risk
Maintenance Replacement Management Totals
$ 20,965 $ 19,558 3 62,552 103,076
71 - - 71
273 - - 273
21,309 19,559 52,552 103,420
7,065 - - 7,065
10,723 - - 10,723
2,962 492 65,596 §9,050
386 s - 386
313 20,471 - 20,784
21,449 20,963 65,596 108,008
(140) {1,404) {3.044) (4,588)
- KY{: - 378
] (172) - (172)
- {2,563) - (2,563)
(140) {3,761) (3,044) {6,945)
(7o) : - (70)
{210) (3,761) (3.044) (7,015)
3,277 81,659 {1,627) 83,309
$ 3,067 $ 77,898 3 (4,671) 76,294
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Intemal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2004
{In thousands of dollars)
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Vehicle Vehicle Risk
Maintenance _ __Replacement Management Tolals
Cash flows from operaling aclivities:

Cash received from customers $ 21,309 $ 19,559 $ 62,552 $ 103,420

Cash payments 1o suppliers for goods and services {13,334) 274 {62,745) (75,805)

Cash paymenls 1o employees for services {7,107} - - {7.107)
Net cash provided (required) by operating aclivities 668 19,833 (193} 20,508
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Transfers {to} from other funds {70} - - (70
Net cash required by noncapital financing aclivilies (70} = - (70)
Cash ftows from capital and related financing aclivities:

Acquisilion and construction of capilal assels {10} (10,993) - {11,003)

Proceeds from sale of capital assels - 798 - 798

Paymentis on leases - (2,348} - {2.348)
Net cash required by capital and related financing activilies {10} {12.543) - 112.553)
Cash flows [rom invesling aclivities:

Interest on investments 378 - 378
Nel increase in cash and cash equivalents 788 7,668 {193) 8,263
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ol year 988 36,864 8,955 46,807
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1.776 44,532 8.762 55,070
Reconciliation of operating income {loss) 1o net cash provided

by operaling aclivilies:

Operating income (loss) (140} (1,404) {3.044) {4,588)
Adjustmenis to reconcile operating income {loss) io net
cash provided by operaling aclivities:
Depraciation 313 20,471 - 20,784
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Incraase) decrease in inventories and prepaid expenses {147) - 36 {111
Increase {decrease) in payables 790 766 2,815 4,371
Increase {decrease) in olher liabilities 52 - - 52
Ned cash provided by operating activilies 868 19,833 {193) 20,508




DeKalb County, Georgia

Agency Funds

Tax Commissicner - to account for all real, personal, intangible, and intangible recording taxes collected and forwarded to the County and other
governmental units.

Sheriff - to account for collection fees, proceeds from judicial sales, bond forfeitures, and cash bonds, which are disbursed to other elected officials and
agencies, the County, and individuals, The Sheriff also collects, maintains, and disburses monies for civil suits and minors per court order.

Seized Property - to account for monies seized by public safety during arrests. These monies are either returned to viclims, the arrested party, or
forfeited to the County.

The following agency funds are used to account for fines, fees, and other monies collected by the courts and remitled to other parties in accordance with
court orders and state law:

Clerk of Superior Court Probate Court
State Court Magistrate Court
Juvenile Court State Court Probation
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TAX COMMISSIONER
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Taxes Receivable
Total Assels
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

SHERIFF
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

CLERK SUPERIOR COURT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalenis
LIABILITIES
Due to Othars

AT RT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

EMN! RT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

DeKalb County, Georgia
Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabililies
Year Ended December 31, 2004
(In thousands of dollars})

Balance Balance
12/31/2003 Additions Deductions 1213172004
§ 17618 814,173 B17,958 § 13,833
26,671 544,781 644 549 26,903
$ 44|289 1,458,954 1 .462!507 H 40!733
$ 44!239 1,458,954 1'462|5°7 $ 40738
$ 8!081 3,825 3,985 S 5,92;
3 7.613 3,625 31935 3 55921
S 2,796 44,848 41709 § 5 936
$ 2,788 44 B49 41,709 § 5,936
3 1,048 12I1B2 12,284 H 944
3 1,046 12,182 12|254 5 944
$ 18 207 204 S 21
— 3
$ 18 207 204§ 21

PROBATE COURT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

MAGISTRAT! RT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

STATE COURT PROBATION
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalenis
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

SEIZED PROPERTY
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalenis
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

TOTALS
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Taxes Receivable
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Due to Others
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Balance Balance
12/31/2003 Additions Deductions 1213112004
319 $ 1,148 $ 1,180 $ 285
319 - 1,146 3 1,180 $ 285
28 3 1.097 S 1,090 $ 35
28 $ 1,087 § 1,080 § a5
2082 S 3!1 a0 3 3,866 $ 1,386
2!062 $ 3,190 $ 3,668 3 1,386
200 § 268 § 268 § 299
3
299 3 268 3 268 3 299
—— __ 3
30,267 $ 880,837 s 862,544 $ 20660
26,671 B44 781 644,548 26,903
53!938 3 1,!22,71 [:) $ 1,527,093 $ 55563
56,938 3 1,5_25,718 $_ 1,527,093 $ 55563
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Statistical tables differ from financial statements because they usually cover more than one fiscal year and may present non-accounting data. These
tables reflect social and economic data, financial trends, and the fiscal capacity of the government.
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Comments Relative to the Statistical Section

The following statistical tables that are recommended for inclusion by the Government Finance Officer's Association are not included for the reasons
stated below:

Special Assessment Collections - Last Ten Fiscal Years. (County has had no special assessments for the past ten years related to any debt for which
the County is cbligated in some manner.)



DeKalb County, Georgia

General Governmental Revenues By Source and Expenditures By Function

Last Ten Years
{In thousands of dollars}
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1895
Revenues By Source:

Taxes $ 356629 $353,904 $310,756 §205,665 32682191 $265,959 $3095,268 5264.053 $226,554 $216,116
Licenses and Permils 28,432 26,833 27,625 29,385 27,666 28,254 22,162 21,257 20,396 18,138
Use of Money and Property 2,487 4,284 4,237 7.280 10,556 7.302 7.391 5211 5,751 5311
Intergovernmental 46,613 46,704 47,228 48,929 55,613 28,860 40,169 16,992 17,400 15,618
Fines and Forfeitures 33,674 29.311 24,162 21,571 20,171 19,277 19,155 19,474 17,835 16,247
Charges for Services 46,766 35,835 35,580 28,994 26,094 26,499 2417 22,053 21,900 20,268
Miscellaneous 8,043 5,742 4,262 5470 3.610 3,950 4,141 5,315 3,024 2,143

Total $ 522644 5503613 $461,850 $4368,204 $428,721 $380,101 $426,478 $354,355 $312,860 $293,841

Expenditures By Function:

General Governmenl § 60,197 $ 62,020 $ 55,369 $ 51,986 $ 49,551 $ 45123 $ 41,290 § 36,957 $ 38,031 § 236,704
Public Safety 160,407 143,940 136,441 128,107 118,285 114,840 103,288 93,282 88,625 89,741
Civil and Criminal Court System 115,295 109,274 101,229 97,039 91,326 82,810 73,481 66,188 60,436 59,525
Planning 1,664 1,569 1,341 1,750 1,923 2,24 1,920 1,943 1,943 2,141
Public Works 40,858 43,605 41,107 38,346 42,458 30,063 42,757 26,075 24,430 24,984
Community Developmenl 12,929 9,443 8,094 8,642 7,361 8,183 5,829 6,225 6,027 6,248
Parks and Recreation 18,433 17,697 19,578 18,245 16,562 15,722 14,935 14,166 13,247 13,819
Library 11,004 10,828 10,071 10171 8,525 7.377 6,963 6,663 6,106 6,016
Health and Weifare 33,801 33,960 33,526 26,596 25,787 25,718 25,830 19,092 23,670 24,628
Miscellaneous 15,650 11,738 10,294 9,636 7.569 10,618 7,664 7,049 8,730 11,329
Debt Service 30,051 35,362 34,112 27,201 26,201 21,418 19,628 19,838 20,1808 19,658
Capital Outlays 101,517 71,834 46,650 42,148 16,473 28,544 30,270 14,709 9,239 9,187

Total $ 601,808 $551,370 $497,812 $459,867 $412.002 $392,648 $373,865 $312,127 $300,672 $304,060

General governmental revenues and expenditures include all revenues and expenditures of governmental fund types. Transfers to or from other funds are not included.
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Poputation {in thousands)*
Assessed Value {in milions of doflars)

Gross Bonded Debt (in thousands
of dallars)

Less Reserve for General Bond Debt
Service (in thousands of dollars)

Net Bonded Debt (in thousands
of doflars)

Ratio of Net Bonded Debt to
Assessed Value

Net Bonded Debt Per Capita

Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita

DeKalb County, Georgia

Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt lo

*Source: DeKalb County Planning Department

General Governmental Expenditures®

Debt Service Expenditures for
General Bonded Debt**

Ratio (%) of Debt Service
Expenditures o General
Governmental Expenditures

Last Ten Years
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995

695 691 686 675 666 610 509 594 590 585

$ 22,330 $ 21,506 $ 20,345 $ 18,956 $ 17,540 $ 15649 $ 14,110 $ 13,650 $ 12,953 $ 12,378

s

§ 234,500 $250,345 $267.640 $282,275 $168,335 $175920 $183,360 $1088,620 $185,510 $202,075
13,182 10,814 14,976 17,610 12,979 12,618 12,861 13,148 12,770 12,852

§ 221,318 $239,531 $252,664 $ 264,665 $155,356 $163,302 $170,459 $175.472 $182,740 $189,223

" My e EEETEEC—
0.0099 0.0111 00124 0.0140 0.0089 0.0104 0.0121 0.0129 0.0141 0.0153
—
$  318.44 $ 346.64 $ 366.31 $ 392.10 $ 233.27 $ 267.71 $ 284.64 $ 295.41 $ 30973 $ 32346
DeKalb County, Georgia
Ratio of Annual Debl Service For General Bonded Debt
To Tolal General Expenditures
Last Ten Years
{in thousands of dollars)
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
$ 601,806 $551.370 $497,812 $459,867 $412,002 $392.648 $373,865 $212,127 S300i672 5304060
$ 28,140 $ 208,455 3 28,310 $ 20,886 § 17,029 $ 17177 $ 17,306 $ 17,454 $ 17443 $ 17119
4 3% 5.17% 5.69% 4.54% 4.13% 4.37% 4.63% 5.59% 5.80% 5.83%

* Includes all expenditures by govemnmental fund types. Transfers io other funds are not included.
** Includes all govermmental funds revenue bonds and general obligation bonds expenditures.



DeKalb County, Geargia
Computation of Legal Debt Margin

December 31, 2004
{In thousands of dollars)

Assessed Value $22,330,000
Debt Limit - 10% of assessed value 2,233,000
Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit:
Total bonded debt $ 796,735
Less:
General obligation bonds fund balance $ 13,182
Governmental activities revenue bonds . 64,420
Waler and sewerage system revenue bonds 497,815 575,417
Total debt applicable to debt limit 221,318
Legal Debt Margin $ 2,011,682

NOTE: The constitutional debt limit for general obligation tax bonds which may be issued by the Commissioners of DeKalb County
is 10% of the assessed valuation of taxable property within the County.

DeKalb County, Georgia
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

December 31, 2004
{In thousands of dollars)

Gross Debt Percentage DeKalb
Less Debt Debt County's
Retirement Applicable to Share
Funds DeKalb County of Debt
DeKalb County $ 221,318 100.00% $ 221,318
Overlapping Debt;
City of Atlanta (A) 290,365 2.60% 7.549
Fulton-DeKalb Hospital Authority (B) 258,400 29.34% 75,815
Total Overlapping Debt 548,765 83,364
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 770,083 304,682
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt Per Capita $ 43833

{A) Debt-overtaps only property in the County which lies within city limits of Atlanta.
(B) Debt overlaps Countywide. ‘These bonds are a closed lien on a limited tax contracted to be levied by Fulton and DeKalb
Counties. The Authority has no power to levy taxes.
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Property Value, Construction Activity, and Bank Deposits

Property Value (In millions of dollars) $ 55826 $ 53,341 $ 50,664

Construction Permits 9,115 8,785 9,282

Construction Value {in millions of dollars) $ 1,754 $ 1312 $ 1,831

Last Ten Years
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1996 1997 1896 1895
$ 47,391 $ 43,851 $ 39,124 $ 35276 § 34,126 $ 32,384 $ 30,945
10,051 9,530 9,331 9,363 7.159 6,361 5,546
$ 2601 $ 1,644 $ 1436 $ 984 $ B2S $ 880 ] 509
$ 7.876 $ 11,107 $ 8,392 $ B,1B6 $ 8,390 $ 6,580 $ 6,385

Bank Depasits {in millions of dollars) 3 8,223 $ 8,553 $ 7916

Source: DeKalb County Development Department and Federal Reserve Bank

* Bank deposils are for fiscal years ending June 30 of the respeclive years.











